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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

 Allow me to begin by sharing  our excitement about the future 
of the Company despite our complex market landscape.  

Before we get into that, however, I would like to introduce myself 
as the new Chief Executive Officer of Tesco Corporation.  Since 
my arrival in 2009, then as the Senior Vice President of Marketing 
and Business Development, I have been passionate about 
Tesco’s success.  In keeping with those sentiments, I embraced 
every opportunity to take the Company forward with each added 
responsibility that was entrusted to me.  Beginning in July 2011, 
one of the challenges that I faced as Tesco’s Chief Operating Officer, 
about which I am most passionate, was the promotion of our Quality 
Health, Safety & Environment (QHSE) program and execution 
excellence as foundations to build a consistently competitive and 
profitable business.

My appointment to CEO nearly four years later was immediately 
confronted with volatile market conditions.  It is my belief that 
the current market is now presenting us with the opportunity to 
differentiate ourselves and to deliver where others may find it 
difficult.  I welcomed the challenges that I faced upon my arrival 
at Tesco six years ago during the 2009 down cycle and feel more 
confident now in our ability to execute our strategy in the current 
weak energy environment and to use this opportunity to reinvent 
and reposition ourselves to take maximum advantage of the next 
market up swing.  As a highly differentiated company, Tesco seeks 
to improve the efficiencies of the drilling process by providing a 
range of rig mechanization products, tubular services, after market 
services and innovative technologies to an expanding base of 
customers.

INTRODUCTION

You may be asking, “How are we going to get there?”  In May 2014, 
Tesco formulated and started implementing a Five-Year Strategy 
to achieve significant growth and shareholder return by the end 
of this decade. This strategy was designed to provide an internal 
road map to our employees and also allow us to share our vision 
with the investor community and our clients.  It was the first time 
that we published and shared our strategy with the market.  While 
we believe that the fundamental long-term goals and opportunities 
defined in that strategy are achievable, we are working hard to 
adapt our vision to the realities that surround us today.  We plan 
to continue to execute on our strategic objectives at a pace that 
strikes the best balance between achieving such long-term goals 
and the short-term needs required to deal with the market of today.

I would like to share with you some of the highlights of the 
Five-Year Strategy that we introduced in 2014.

We defined four strategic implementations:

- The expansion of our Tubular Services business, 
particularly offshore

- The expansion of our After Market Services to service 
third party equipment

- The incorporation of additional pipe handling 
products into our manufacturing platform

- The adaptation of our Top Drives rental business to 
the market conditions and incorporation of additional 
pipe handling products into our global platform

We put in place a $100 million, two-year share repurchase 
program and repurchased $27 million of common stock 
during the third and fourth quarters of 2014.

We put in place a quarterly dividend program and paid 
$6 million in 2014.

We proposed a total of $650 million in strategic capital 
investments during the five-year period through 2019. This 
included a budget of $250 million in capital expenditures 
to fuel organic growth, $250 million in acquisitions and 
the remainder in enhancing total shareholder return.
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Here is some of the progress achieved in 2014 as part of 
the implementation of our strategy:

QHSE:

- Achieved a record safety performance by delivering 
Tesco’s best Total Recordable Incident Rate in 2014

- Achieved a Service Quality Incident Rate of 2.7% in 
2014

Tubular Services:

- Achieved a record revenue of $224.1 million, continuing 
a five-year trend in revenue growth

- Entered the North Sea market, secured our first contract 
and completed our first Casing Running project

- Broadened our service offerings to include Surface 
Casing Hammering operations and completed our first 
job in Indonesia

After Market Sales & Services:

- Achieved record revenue of $72.5 million in 2014

- Completed seven third party Top Drive re-certifications

- Commercialized and deployed eight of our Equipment 
Health Monitoring (EHM) Systems

- Acquired and integrated Tech Field Services and the 
assets of AmerRig in North America, further enhancing 
our capabilities to perform third party products work

Top Drive Product Sales:

- Delivered near best Top Drive manufacturing production 
volumes while also manufacturing catwalks, CDS tools 
and in sourcing hydraulic power units (HPU)

- Began manufacturing our new catwalks product offering 
and sold thirteen catwalks in the first year

- Achieved 98% on-time delivery in all contracts in 2014

Rentals:

- Successfully launched the HXI 150T Top Drive rental 
offering

- Incorporated three electric units into our rental fleet, 
including our first EXI model to satisfy the 350 ton 
market

- Deployed twelve EHM systems in our rental fleet

- Maintained 99.6% uptime globally

As I write this message, the current North American rig count has 
declined at an average of 66 rigs per week for the past 18 weeks 
and is now at approximately 1100 rigs, down 50% from its peak in 
November 2014.  The rig count decline is in line with the drop in 
crude oil prices that began around the same time.

While it remains uncertain how long this down cycle will continue, 
we are responding to the current economic conditions with two 
simple but critical actions: first and foremost, we are making 
cash generation and cash preservation our number one priority.  
Secondly, we are aggressively adjusting our cost structure and 
improving our operational efficiencies to ensure that we remain 
competitive and retain our ability to serve our customers in this 
uncertain market. 

In parallel with these actions, we will continue our commitment to 
making QHSE activities an integral part of operations at all levels.  
Onshore, we will focus on the regions in which we have a strong 
presence and infrastructure by adding scope and services that 
leverage our current platform and offerings. In addition, we will 
continue our aggressive focus on offshore expansion particularly 
for Tubular Services.  Our current infrastructure in most regions 
has the capacity to handle service expansion without the need 
for additional material capital expenditures.  The required global 
footprint is already largely in place.  

We will also accelerate the use of technology to differentiate 
ourselves and, as such, we will continue to support significant 
investments in Research and Engineering (R&E).  We have a 
strong R&E development pipeline and are excited about the 
positive impact those technologies, including new pipe handling, 
rig mechanization products and drilling automation, will have on 
our company in the near future.

Lastly, we will utilize our strong balance sheet, our cash generation 
capabilities and our access to credit to our advantage.  This, together 
with our employees’ passion, commitment and determination, will 
provide the strong foundation needed to set us apart from our 
peers during these difficult times.

In summary, we are rapidly and decisively taking action to 
successfully navigate the current environment and to position 
ourselves for the long haul.  I see significant opportunities in this 
downturn that will allow highly differentiated companies like Tesco 
to provide innovative solutions to an industry that is being forced 
to rethink the way in which it operates.  Now may be a good time 
to remember that, “Tesco seeks to change the way in which wells 
are drilled”.

Thank you for your continued support,

Fernando R. Assing
President and Chief Executive Officer
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PART I

This Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (this "Report") contains "forward-looking 
statements" within the meaning of Canadian and United States securities laws, including within the safe harbor provisions of the 
United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. From time to time, our public filings, press releases and other 
communications by our officers and representatives (such as conference calls and presentations) will contain forward-looking 
statements. Forward-looking information is often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as "anticipate", "believe", 
"expect", "plan", "goal", "seek", "strategy", "future", "intend", "forecast", "target", "project", "likely", "may", "will", "should", 
"could", "estimate", "predict" or similar words suggesting future outcomes or language suggesting an outlook. Forward-looking 
statements in this Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to, statements with respect to expectations of our prospects, 
future revenue, earnings, activities, and technical results.

Forward-looking statements are neither historical facts nor assurances of future performance. Instead, they are based only on our 
current beliefs, expectations, and assumptions regarding the future of our business, future plans and strategies, projections, 
anticipated events, and trends, the economy, and other future conditions. The forward-looking statements in this Report are made 
as of the date it was issued.  We do not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, except as required by applicable law.

By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, and risks that 
outcomes implied by forward-looking statements will not be achieved. We caution readers not to place undue reliance on these 
statements as a number of important factors could cause the actual results to differ materially from the beliefs, plans, objectives, 
expectations and anticipations, estimates, and intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements. Therefore, you should not 
rely on any of these forward-looking statements. 

Item 1.  Business
 
General

In this Report the terms "Tesco Corporation," "we," "us," "our," or "the Company," refers to Tesco Corporation and all of its 
subsidiaries. 

Tesco Corporation was organized under the laws of Alberta, Canada on December 1, 1993 through the amalgamation of Shelter 
Oil and Gas Ltd., Coexco Petroleum Inc., Forewest Industries Ltd. and Tesco Corporation.  The Company’s principal executive 
offices are located at 3993 W. Sam Houston Pkwy. N., Suite 100, Houston, Texas 77043, its telephone number is 713-359-7000, 
and its internet web address is www.tescocorp.com.  The Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, and current reports on Form 8-K are available free of charge on our internet website.  These reports are posted on its website 
as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). 
The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is also posted on our website.  The company’s common stock is traded on 
the NASDAQ stock exchange under the symbol "TESO".

We are a global leader in the design, assemble, and service delivery of technology-based solutions for the upstream energy industry 
with operations in 23 countries across five continents.  With a strong commitment to in-house research and engineering, we seek 
to change the way wells are drilled by delivering safer and more efficient solutions that add real value by reducing the costs of 
drilling for, and producing, oil and natural gas.  Our product and service offerings consist mainly of equipment sales and services 
to drilling contractors and exploration and production companies throughout the world.

Prior to the sale of the Casing Drilling business during the second quarter of 2012, our five business segments were:

• Top Drive – top drive sales, top drive rentals and after-market sales and services;

• Tubular Services – automated and conventional tubular services;

• Casing Drilling – proprietary Casing Drilling technology;

• Research and Engineering – internal research and development activities related to our automated tubular services  
and top drive model development, as well as the Casing Drilling technology prior to the sale; and

• Corporate and Other – including executive management and several global support and compliance functions
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Top Drive segment

Our Top Drive segment sells equipment and provides services to drilling contractors and exploration and production companies 
throughout the world.  We provide top drive rental services on a day-rate basis for land and offshore drilling rigs and we also 
provide after-market sales and support services to our customers.

We primarily assemble top drives that are used in drilling operations to rotate the drill string and/or casing while suspended from 
the derrick above the rig floor.  Our top drives offer portability and flexibility, permitting drilling companies to utilize the top drive 
for drilling all or any portion of a well.  We offer for sale a range of portable and permanently installed top drive products that 
includes both hydraulically and electrically powered machines capable of delivering 400 to 1,350 horsepower, with a rated lifting 
capacity of 150 to 750 tons.  Our systems require fewer people in the drilling process than those involved with conventional kelly 
drilling with rotary table.  With each top drive we sell, we offer installation and support services, including training.
 
We offer nine distinct series of top drive systems, using either hydraulic, induction alternating current ("AC"), or permanent magnet 
AC technology.  We believe that we are industry leaders in the development and provision of both portable and permanently 
installed top drive systems.  Our designs and technology provide very high power density, allowing for a high power to weight 
ratio.  We use AC induction technology and late generation power electronics throughout our entire line up of electric top drives, 
allowing the end user to specify its preferred power electronics and motor combination and permitting us to select components 
from a larger vendor base.  Our EMI top drive units are available with 150 to 250 ton load path configurations.  We also developed 
our EXI system in response to market demands for a high performance compact electric top drive system, commonly required on 
modern fast moving rigs frequently used in pad drilling operations. The EXI system has a load path rating of 350 to 400 tons and 
generates 600 horsepower at the quill.  The ESI is our latest model, which has a load path rating of 500 to 750 tons and generates 
1,000 to 1,350 horsepower at the quill.  The HXI is a new generation of our current hydraulic HMI system, incorporating a full 
suite of operational features and providing a significant gain in performance at the quill.  The HXI machine has a load path rating 
of 150 to 250 tons and is driven by a 700 horsepower self-contained diesel-driven hydraulic power unit.

 
In addition to our top drive sales, we maintain a fleet of 135 top drives and catwalks deployed strategically throughout the world 
that we rent on a day-rate basis for land and offshore drilling rigs.  Our rental fleet is highly transportable, offers a range of systems 
that can be installed in practically any mast configuration, including workover rigs, and are mobilized to meet the needs of our 
customer.  Our rental fleet is composed principally of hydraulically powered top drive systems, with power ratings of 475 to 1,205 
horsepower and load path ratings of 150 to 650 tons, each equipped with its own independent diesel engine driven hydraulic power 
unit.  This unique combination permits a high level of portability and installation flexibility. We currently maintain top drive rental 
units in Latin America, the United States, Canada, Russia, Asia-Pacific, Europe, and the Middle East. In 2014, we enhanced our 
rental product offerings by introducing catwalk rental units.

We also provide after-market sales and services to our installed customer base through our facilities around the globe.  Our service 
offerings include initial rig up and training for our sold units and recertification and repair of our units. We recently extended our 
after-market support beyond our own equipment to service competitor brand top drives and other automated pipe handling 
equipment. Entry into this market was primarily at the request of our current customer base with mixed fleets and represents a 
significant growth opportunity for us. We maintain regional stocks of high-demand parts in order to expedite top quality, original 
replacement parts for top drive systems. Our highly experienced field personnel are responsible for the rig up and installation of 
most units, which includes both rental units and customer-owned units.  Our personnel also provide onsite training and top drive 
supervision.  In addition, our technicians are available to perform work under ongoing maintenance and fleet management contracts.

Markets and Competition

Demand for our top drive products and rental services depends primarily upon the level of drilling activity and capital spending 
of drilling contractors and oil and natural gas companies.  Our customers for top drive sales and after-market sales and service 
primarily consist of drilling contractors, rig builders and equipment brokers.  Occasionally, we may also sell top drives and provide 
after-market sales and services to major and independent oil and natural gas companies and national oil companies who wish to 
own and manage their own top drive systems.  Our customers for our rental fleet include drilling contractors, major and independent 
exploration and production companies.

We estimate that approximately 60% to 70% of land drilling rigs drilling deviated and horizontal wells are currently equipped 
with top drive systems, including Russia, China, and India, where a lower number of rigs operate with top drives today.  By 
contrast, we estimate that approximately 95% of offshore rigs are equipped with top drives. We were the first top drive manufacturer 
to provide portable top drives for land drilling rigs.  We believe that significant land-based market potential exists for our top drive 
drilling system technology, including both portable and permanently installed applications. Further, when many top drive systems 
approach the end of their useful lives and are inefficient or may not have legacy parts available, we see the development of a 
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conversion market, which provides an important opportunity for us. In addition, the current technology demand associated with 
complex drilling is driving the demand for newer more capable Top Drives to replace older existing equipment.

Our primary competitors in the sale of top drive systems are National Oilwell Varco, Inc. ("NOV") and Canrig Drilling Technology 
Ltd., a subsidiary of Nabors Industries Ltd.  In addition, low-cost manufacturers, notably from China, have entered the market in 
recent years.  We believe that we have the second largest installed base and are the number two global provider of top drives, 
following NOV.  Of the three major top drive system providers, we maintain the largest fleet of assets solely for rental 
purposes.  Competition in our industry in the sale of top drive systems takes place primarily on the basis of the features and 
capacities of the equipment, the quality of the services and technical support offered, delivery lead time, and price.

Backlog

We believe that top drive sales backlog is an indicator of how our business will be affected by changes in the global macro-
economic environment. We consider a product sale order as backlog when the customer has signed a purchase contract, submitted 
the purchase order and, if required by the purchase agreement, paid a deposit. Revenue from services is recognized as the services 
are rendered, based upon agreed daily, hourly, or job rates. Accordingly, we have no backlog for services.

Our top drive sales backlog at December 31, 2014 was 33 units with a total potential revenue value of $35.5 million, compared 
to 32 units with a total potential revenue value of $44.2 million at December 31, 2013.  The backlog revenue varies depending on 
the product mix and the scope of the equipment supplied. Approximately one-third of the backlog at year-end is not scheduled to 
ship until 2016.

We have the ability to expand or contract our top drive assembly capacity to meet current and expected customer demand.  In the 
past, we contracted our assemble operations substantially in response to market conditions. Later, when conditions improved, we 
expanded them to meet demand.

In 2014, we initiated the sale of automated Catwalks. Catwalks are used to deliver pipe from the pipe racking systems at ground 
level into the rig floor in an automated manner. Catwalks work in conjunction with the Top Drives and our CDSTM to automate 
the pipe movement around the rig floor, minimizing the risks and eliminating the need for pipe manipulation by people. Our 
primary competitors for the sale of our new Catwalks product line are Forum, Canrig, and NOV.

Tubular Services segment

Our Tubular Services segment includes a suite of automated offerings, as well as conventional casing and tubing running services 
for both onshore and offshore markets. These services are typically contracted on a call out basis.  Casing is steel pipe that is 
installed in oil, natural gas, or geothermal wells to maintain the pressure and structural integrity of the well bore, isolate water 
bearing surface sands, prevent communication between subsurface strata, and provide structural support of the wellhead and other 
casing and tubing strings in the well.  Most operators and drilling contractors install casing and tubing using service companies, 
like ours, that use specialized equipment and personnel trained for this purpose. Wells can have from two to ten casing strings of 
various sizes installed.  These jobs encompass wells from vertical holes to high angle extended reach wells and include both 
onshore and offshore applications.

Our patented Casing Drive System ("CDS") is a tool which facilitates running and reaming casing into a well bore on any rig 
equipped with a top drive.  This tool offers improved safety and efficiency over traditional methods by eliminating operations that 
are associated with high risk of personal injury.  It also increases the likelihood that the casing can be run to casing point on the 
first attempt, offers the ability to simultaneously rotate and reciprocate the casing string as required while circulating drilling fluid, 
and requires fewer people on the rig for casing running operations than traditional methods.

The company also supplies a rotating Side Entry Swivel Sub ("SESS").  This tool works in conjunction with the CDS tool to allow 
rotation and reciprocation of the casing string during cementing operations. Reciprocation and rotation is recognized by the industry 
as greatly improving the uniformity and quality of the cement around the casing, in turn helping to reduce the potential of 
environmental incidents and future intervention costs.

We offer a full range of offshore casing and tubing running services, in both deep water and shelf applications. As part of our suite 
of equipment, we also offer installation services of deep water completion equipment using our Multiple Control Line Running 
System ("MCLRS") which is a proprietary and patented technology.  We believe that this technology substantially improves the 
quality of the installation of high-end well completions by eliminating damage and the need to splice or replace control and injection 
lines.  We also believe that this technology improves the speed and safety of the completion process by splitting the work area 
between personnel making up the tubing and personnel installing completion equipment.
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Our conventional service offerings provide equipment and personnel for the installation of tubing and casing, including power 
tongs, pick-up/lay-down units, torque monitoring services, and connection testing services for new well construction and in work-
over and re-entry operations.

Markets and Competition

Our Tubular Services customers primarily consist of oil and natural gas operating companies, including major and independent 
companies, national oil companies and, on occasion, other service companies, particularly those providing integrated project 
management services to operating companies that under these projects have contractual obligations to provide tubular running 
and handling services.  Demand for our tubular services strongly depends upon capital spending of oil and natural gas companies, 
the actual number of wells drilled by these companies, and the complexity of the wells drilled.

The tubular services market consists generally of very few large, global operators and a large number of small and medium-sized 
operators that typically operate in limited geographic areas where the market is highly fragmented. The largest global competitors 
in this market are Weatherford International, Ltd. ("Weatherford International"), Franks International, Inc., and Baker Hughes 
Incorporated.  Competition takes place primarily on the basis of safety, service quality, utility and quality of the equipment provided, 
the proximity of the service provider, and equipment to the work site and price. We leverage our existing global infrastructure to 
maintain a competitive tubular service business that is able to respond to customer needs in most regions of the world. We believe 
that the demand for our proprietary automated tubular services will increase as non-conventional drilling technologies such as 
directional and horizontal drilling are more frequently implemented in new wells being drilled.

While we are aware of competitive technology similar to our CDSTM tool, we believe that we continue to be the market leader in 
this technology.  Our CDSTM system is easily and quickly installed on any top drive system and we offer skilled and trained 
personnel at the field level who have specialized knowledge of top drive drilling system operations.

Casing Drilling segment

On June 4, 2012, we completed the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Casing Drilling segment to subsidiaries of 
Schlumberger Ltd.  For detailed discussion of this matter, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 
4" included in this Report.

The Casing Drilling segment was based on our proprietary Casing Drilling technology, which used patented equipment and 
processes to allow an oil or gas well to be simultaneously drilled and cased using standard well casing pipe. In contrast, conventional 
or straight practice rotary drilling requires the use of drill pipe and drill string components.  The demonstrated benefits of using 
well casing to drill the well compared to conventional drilling include, among other benefits, a reduction in the risk of unscheduled 
downhole events that typically result in non-productive time and additional cost and operational risk to the drilling contractor and 
well operator. In addition, it avoided well bore exposure during tripping and mitigated associated risks such as borehole collapse, 
lost circulation problems and stuck tools or pipe.

Research and Engineering segment

As a technology-driven company, we continue to invest significantly in research and development activities, primarily related to 
the further development and enhancement of our automated product offerings.  We hold rights, through patents and patent license 
agreements, to patented and/or patent pending technologies for certain innovations that we believe will have application to our 
core businesses.   We pursue patent protection in appropriate jurisdictions including, but not limited to, the United States, Canada, 
and Europe, where we believe our innovations could have significant potential application to our core businesses.  Our patent 
portfolio currently includes 130 issued patents, comprised of 56 U.S. and 74 foreign patents, and 107 pending patent applications, 
comprised of 42 U.S. and 65 foreign patent applications.  We generally retain all intellectual property rights to our technology 
through non-disclosure and technology ownership agreements with our employees, suppliers, consultants, and other third parties 
with whom we do business.
 
We hold patents for various specific aspects of the design of our portable top drive and related equipment.  Our CDS is protected 
by patents on some of the gripping tools and on the "link tilt" system, which is a method used to handle casing.  We hold numerous 
patents related to the installation and utilization of certain accessories for casing for purposes of casing rotation. Various other 
related methods and tools are patent protected as well.

We seek to invest the equivalent to 1.5% to 2.0% of our revenue in research and engineering activities annually.  We expect to 
continue to invest in the development, commercialization, and enhancements of proprietary technologies.
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Corporate and Other

The Corporate and Other segment consists of expense at the corporate level, which includes executive management, general and 
administrative costs, selling, marketing, and other expenses that are not directly related to or allocated down to other segments in 
our internal reporting.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Our Top Drive and Tubular Services businesses are distributed globally.  For the information of our property, plant, and equipment 
by business segment and geographic area at December 31, 2014, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary 
Data, Note 16" included in this Report.  The following table presents our revenue by segment and geographic areas for the years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 (United States dollars in thousands):

 United States and Canada International
TotalRevenue % Revenue %

Top Drive
2014 $ 139,100 44% $ 179,686 56% $ 318,786
2013 88,128 28% 223,442 72% 311,570
2012 158,928 44% 198,859 56% 357,787

Tubular Services
2014 $ 106,600 48% $ 117,542 52% $ 224,142
2013 109,004 51% 103,667 49% 212,671
2012 107,983 59% 74,490 41% 182,473

Casing Drilling(1)

2014 $ 63 100% $ — —% $ 63
2013 624 100% — —% 624
2012 4,268 33% 8,625 67% 12,893

__________________________________
(1) On June 4, 2012, we completed the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Casing Drilling segment to the Schlumberger Group.  For 

detailed discussion of this matter, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 4" included in this Report. 

Procurement of Materials and Supplies

We believe that materials and components used in our servicing and assembly operations and purchased for sales are generally 
available from multiple sources. The prices paid by us for our raw materials may be affected by, among other things, energy, steel 
and other commodity prices; tariffs and duties on imported materials; and foreign currency exchange rates.  For a discussion of 
the procurement of materials and supplies, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 16" included 
in this Report.

Seasonality
 
Our business is subject to seasonal cycles associated with winter-only, summer-only, dry-season, or regulatory-based access to 
drilling locations.  The most significant of these occur in Canada and Russia. Traditionally, the first and fourth calendar quarters 
of each year are the busiest, as the contractor fleet can access drilling locations that are only accessible when frozen.  As of 
December 31, 2014, approximately 15% of our top drive rental fleet was located in Canada and Russia.

In certain regions in Asia Pacific and South America, we are subject to a decline in activities due to seasonal rains.  Further, seasonal 
variations in the demand for hydrocarbons and accessibility of certain drilling locations in North America can affect our business 
as our activity follows the active drilling rig count.  We actively manage our asset base around the world to minimize the impact 
of geographically specific seasonality.
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Customers
 
Our accounts receivable are principally with major international and national oil and natural gas service and exploration and 
production companies and are subject to normal industry credit risks.  We perform ongoing credit evaluations of customers and 
grant credit based upon past payment history, financial condition, and anticipated industry conditions.  Customer payments are 
regularly monitored and a provision for doubtful accounts is established based upon specific situations and overall industry 
conditions.  Many of our customers are located in international areas that are inherently subject to risks of economic, political and 
civil instabilities, including the effects of currency fluctuations and exchange controls, such as devaluation of foreign currencies 
and other economic problems, which may impact our ability to collect those accounts receivable.  We monitor customers who are 
at risk for non-payment and will, if warranted by the set of circumstances, lower available credit extended to those customers or 
establish alternative arrangements, including increased deposit requirements or payment schedules.

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated revenue in the years ended December 31, 2014 or 2012.  
However, one customer accounted for approximately 10% of our consolidated revenue during the year ended December 31, 2013.  

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, the total number of our employees worldwide was 2,264. We believe that our relationship with our 
employees is good.  We seek to maintain a high level of employee satisfaction, and we believe our employee compensation systems 
are competitive.  Less than 5% of our employees are subject to union contracts, primarily where required by local regulations. As 
of March 31, 2015, the total number of our employees worldwide is approximately 2,050.

Trademarks

We own various trademarks that are important to our business.  Depending upon the jurisdiction, trademarks are valid as long as 
they are in use and/or their registrations are properly maintained.  A list of our trademarks and the countries in which they are 
registered is presented below:

Trademark  Country of Registration
TESCO®  United States, Canada
Casing Drive System™  United States, Canada
CDS™  United States, Canada
Multiple Control Line Running System™  United States, Canada
MCLRS™  United States, Canada

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the "Safe Harbor" Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995 

We operate in an environment that involves a number of significant risks and uncertainties. We caution you to read the following 
risk factors, which have affected, and/or in the future could affect, our business, prospects, operating results, and financial condition. 
The risks described below include forward-looking statements, and actual events and our actual results may differ materially from 
these forward-looking statements. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial 
may also impair our business, prospects, operating results, and financial condition. Furthermore, additional risks and uncertainties 
are described under other captions in this Report and should also be considered by our investors.

Risks associated with the oil and natural gas industry

The decline of the price of oil has negatively impacted our business and continued fluctuations in the demand for, and prices 
of, oil and natural gas would continue to negatively impact our business.

Fluctuations in the demand for, and prices of, oil and natural gas impact the level of drilling activity by our customers and potential 
customers. The prices are primarily determined by supply, demand, government regulations relating to oil and natural gas production 
and processing, and international political events, none of which can be accurately predicted. In times of declining activity, not 
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only is there less opportunity for us to sell our products and services but there is increased competitive pressure that tends to reduce 
our prices and, therefore, our margins. 

In the second half of 2014, crude oil prices declined significantly which negatively impacted our business. Commodity prices 
have continued to deteriorate in early 2015 and could continue for the foreseeable future. We anticipate 2015 will be a challenging 
year for us, as many of our customers reduce their operating budgets. We expect less activity in 2015 coupled with pricing pressures 
and expect corresponding reductions in revenue and operating margins. A continuing environment of depressed oil and natural 
gas prices will reduce the immediate levels of exploration, development, and production activity which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, consolidated results of operations, and consolidated financial condition. An extended reduction in 
oil and natural gas prices may require us to record asset impairments, including an impairment of the carrying value of our goodwill. 
Such a potential impairment charge could have a material adverse impact on our operating results. For more information, see 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” 

We face risks due to the cyclical nature of the energy industry and the corresponding credit risk of our customers.

Changing political, economic, or military circumstances throughout the energy-producing regions of the world can impact the 
market price of oil and natural gas for extended periods of time.  As most of our accounts receivable are with customers involved 
in the oil and natural gas industry, any significant change in such circumstances could result in financial exposure in relation to 
affected customers.   

Our revenue and earnings are subject to fluctuations period over period and are difficult to forecast.
 
Our revenue and earnings may vary significantly from quarter to quarter depending upon:

 
• the level of drilling activity worldwide, as well as the particular geographic focus of the activity;

• the variability of customer orders or a reduction in customer orders, which are particularly unpredictable in international 
markets and which may leave us with excess or obsolete inventories;

• the levels of inventories of our products held by end-users and distributors;

• the mix of our products sold or leased and the margins on those products;

• new products offered and sold or leased by us or our competitors;

• weather conditions or other natural disasters that can affect our operations or our customers’ operations;

• changes in oil and natural gas prices and currency exchange rates, which in some cases affect the costs and prices for our 
products;

• the level of capital equipment project orders, which may vary with the level of new rig construction and refurbishment 
activity in the industry;

• changes in drilling and exploration plans, which can be particularly volatile in international markets;

• the ability of our vendors to timely supply necessary component parts used for the manufacturing of our products; and

• the ability to manufacture and timely deliver customer orders, particularly in the top drive segment due to the increasing 
size and complexity of our models.

In addition, our fixed costs cause our margins to decrease when demand is low and service capacity is underutilized.

We could be subject to substantial liability claims, which would adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, 
and cash flows.
 
Certain equipment and processes are used by us and other companies in the oil and natural gas industry during the delivery of 
oilfield services in hostile environments, such as exploration, development, and production applications. An accident or a failure 
of a product or process could cause personal injury, loss of life, damage to property, equipment, or the environment, and suspension 
of operations. Our insurance may not protect us against liability for some kinds of events, including events involving pollution, 
or against losses resulting from business interruption. Moreover, in the future we may not be able to maintain insurance at levels 
of risk coverage or policy limits that we deem adequate. Substantial claims made under our policies could cause our premiums to 
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increase. Any future damages caused by our products that are not covered by insurance, or are in excess of policy limits or are 
subject to substantial deductibles, could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

Possible legislation and regulations related to global warming and climate change could have an adverse effect on our operations 
and the demand for oil and natural gas.

Foreign, federal, state, and local authorities and agencies are currently evaluating and promulgating climate-related legislation 
and regulations that are focused on restricting greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions. In the United States, the Environmental 
Protection Agency ("EPA") is taking steps to require monitoring and reporting of GHG emissions and to regulate GHGs as pollutants 
under the Clean Air Act ("CAA"). The EPA Greenhouse Reporting Program requires the reporting of GHG emissions from specified 
large GHG emission sources in the United States and certain onshore and offshore oil and natural gas production facilities on an 
annual basis. Further, the EPA will issue proposed regulations in 2015 on methane emissions.  

In addition, climate change legislation is periodically considered in the United States Congress, and foreign jurisdictions are also 
considering the need to address climate changes by legislation or regulation.  Several regional GHG initiatives have formed which 
may require reporting or development of cap and trade programs. These developments may curtail production and demand for 
fossil fuels such as oil and natural gas in areas of the world where our customers operate and thus adversely affect future demand 
for our services, which may in turn adversely affect future results of operations. Additionally, federal and/or state legislation to 
reduce the effects of GHG may potentially have a direct or indirect adverse effect on our operations, including the possible 
imposition on us and/or our customers of additional operational costs due to carbon emissions generated by oil and natural gas 
related activities.  Finally, our business could be negatively affected by climate change related physical changes or changes in 
weather patterns, which could result in damages to or loss of our physical assets, impacts on our ability to conduct operations and/
or disruption of our customers’ operations. 

Onshore oil and natural gas operations could be adversely impacted by changes in, and compliance with, restrictions or 
regulations on onshore drilling in the United States and in other areas around the world which may adversely affect our 
business and operating results.

New federal and state legislation regulating hydraulic fracturing may result in increased costs to drill, complete, and operate wells, 
as well as delays in obtaining permits to drill wells all of which could negatively impact our clients and thereby our  business and 
operating results. If legislation is passed to ban hydraulic fracturing, the number of wells drilled in the future could drop dramatically, 
and the economic performance of those drilled would be negatively affected.  Local authorities have also instituted restrictions to 
hydraulic fracturing operations which could result in negative impacts to our business.

Any significant consolidation or loss of end-user customers could have an impact on our business.

Exploration and production company operators and drilling contractors have undergone substantial consolidation in recent years. 
Additional consolidation is probable. In addition, many oil and natural gas properties could be transferred over time to different 
potential customers.

Consolidation of drilling contractors results in fewer end-users for our products and could result in the combined contractor 
standardizing its equipment preferences in favor of a competitor’s products.

Merger activity among both major and independent oil and natural gas companies also affects exploration, development, and 
production activity, as these consolidated companies attempt to increase efficiency and reduce costs. Generally, only the more 
promising exploration and development projects from each merged entity are likely to be pursued, which may result in overall 
lower post-merger exploration and development budgets. Moreover, some end-users prefer not to use relatively new products or 
premium products in their drilling operations.

We operate in an intensively competitive industry, and if we fail to compete effectively, our business will suffer.

The drilling industry is driven primarily by cost minimization. Our strategy is aimed at reducing drilling costs through the application 
of new technologies. Our competitors, many of whom have a more diverse product line and access to greater amounts of capital 
than we do, have the ability to compete against the cost savings generated by our technology by reducing prices and by introducing 
competing technologies. Our competitors may also have the ability to offer bundles of products and services to customers that we 
do not offer. We have limited resources to sustain prolonged price competition and maintain the level of investment required to 
continue the commercialization and development of our new technologies.
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To compete in our industry, we must continue to develop new technologies and products.

The markets for our products and services are characterized by continual technological developments and we have identified our 
products as providing technological advantages over other competitive products. As a result, substantial improvements in the scope 
and quality of product function and performance can occur over a short period of time. If we are not able to develop commercially 
competitive products in a timely manner in response to changes in technology, our business may be adversely affected. Our future 
ability to develop new products depends on our ability to:

• design and commercially produce products that meet the needs of our customers;

• successfully market new products; and

• obtain and maintain patent protection.

We may encounter resource constraints, technical barriers, or other difficulties that would delay introduction of new products and 
services in the future. Our competitors may introduce new products or obtain patents before we do and achieve a competitive 
advantage. Additionally, the time and expense invested in product development may not result in commercial applications.

For example, from time to time, we have incurred significant losses in the development of new technologies which were not 
successful for various commercial or technical reasons. If we are unable to successfully implement technological or research and 
engineering type activities, our growth prospects may be reduced and our future revenue may be materially and adversely affected. 
Moreover, we may experience operating losses after new products are introduced and commercialized because of high start-up 
costs, unexpected manufacturing costs or problems, or lack of demand.  

Risks associated with the global economy

The current global economic and political environment may negatively impact industry fundamentals, and the related decrease 
in demand for drilling rigs could cause a downturn in the oil and natural gas industry. Such a condition could have a material 
adverse impact on our business.  

An extended deterioration in the global economic environment may impact fundamentals that are critical to our industry, such as 
the global demand for, and consumption of, oil and natural gas. Reduced demand for oil and natural gas generally results in lower 
oil and natural gas prices and prolonged weakness in the economy could impact the economics of planned drilling projects, resulting 
in curtailment, reduction, delay or postponement for an indeterminate period of time. Furthermore, an extended deterioration in 
the political environment in countries where we operate or that produce significant supply of the world’s demand for oil may also 
impact fundamentals that are critical to our industry, such as the global supply of oil and natural gas. Constraints in the global 
supply of oil caused by political turmoil in any of the large oil-producing countries of the world could significantly increase oil 
and natural gas prices while the removal of such constraints could significantly decrease oil and natural gas prices for an 
indeterminate period of time.  Such volatility in oil and natural gas prices could negatively impact the world economy and our 
industry.  Any long-term reduction in oil and natural gas prices will reduce oil and natural gas drilling and production activity and 
result in a corresponding decline in the demand for our products and services, which could adversely affect the demand for sales, 
rentals or services of our top drive units and for our Tubular Services. These reductions could adversely affect the future net 
realizability of assets, including inventory, fixed assets, goodwill, and other intangible assets.

We are exposed to risks associated with the financial markets.
 

While we intend to finance our operations with existing cash, cash flow from operations, and borrowing under our existing credit 
facility, we may require additional financing to support our growth. If any of the significant lenders, insurance companies, or other 
financial institutions are unable to perform their obligations under our credit agreements, insurance policies, or other contracts, 
and we are unable to find suitable replacements on acceptable terms as a result of recent credit disruptions or otherwise, our results 
of operations, liquidity, and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Many of our customers access the credit markets to finance their oil and natural gas drilling and production activity. The inability 
of these parties to obtain financing on acceptable terms, due to credit disruptions or otherwise, could impair their ability to perform 
under their agreements with us and lead to various negative effects on us, including business disruption, decreased revenue, and 
increases in bad debt write-offs. A sustained decline in the financial stability of our customers could have an adverse impact on 
our business and results of operations.
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The occurrence or threat of terrorist attacks could materially impact our business.

The occurrence or threat of terrorist attacks could adversely affect the economies of countries where we operate. A lower level of 
economic activity could result in a decline in energy consumption, which could cause a decrease in spending by oil and natural 
gas companies for exploration and development.  In addition, these risks could trigger increased volatility in prices for crude oil 
and natural gas which could also adversely affect spending by oil and natural gas companies.  A decrease in spending for any 
reason could adversely affect the markets for our products and thereby adversely affect our revenue and margins and limit our 
future growth prospects. Moreover, these risks could cause increased instability in the financial and insurance markets and adversely 
affect our ability to access capital and to obtain insurance coverage that we consider adequate or are required to obtain by our 
contracts with third parties.

We face risks related to natural disasters and pandemic diseases, which could materially and adversely disrupt our operations 
and affect travel required for our worldwide operations.

A portion of our business involves the movement of people, parts, and supplies to or from foreign locations. Any restrictions on 
travel or shipments to and from foreign locations, due to the occurrence of natural disasters such as earthquakes, floods, or 
hurricanes; or an epidemic or outbreak of diseases, in these locations, could significantly disrupt our operations and decrease our 
ability to provide services to our customers. In addition, our local workforce could be affected by such an occurrence or outbreak 
which could also significantly disrupt our operations and decrease our ability to provide services to our customers.

Our operations are subject to political and economic instability, risk of government action, and cybersecurity incidents that 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, consolidated results of operations, and consolidated financial condition.

We are exposed to risks inherent in doing business in each of the countries in which we operate. In places like Russia, Latin 
America, the Middle East and Asia Pacific, we may have difficulty or extra expense in navigating the local bureaucracies and 
legal systems.  We may face challenges in enforcing contracts in local courts or be at a disadvantage when we have a dispute with 
a customer that is an agency of the state. We may be at a disadvantage to competitors that are not subject to the same international 
trade and business practice restrictions that U.S. and Canadian laws impose on us.

While diversification is desirable, it can expose us to risks related to cultural, political, and economic factors of foreign jurisdictions 
which are beyond our control. As a general rule, we have elected not to carry political risk insurance against these risks. Such risks 
include the following:

• loss of revenue, property, and equipment as a result of hazards such as wars, insurrection, and other instances of political 
and economic instability;

• the effects of currency fluctuations and exchange controls, such as devaluation of foreign currencies and other economic 
problems;

• changes or interpretations in laws, regulations, and policies of foreign governments, including those associated with 
changes in the governing parties, nationalization, and expropriation;

• protracted delays in securing government consents, permits, licenses, or other regulatory approvals necessary to conduct 
our operations; and

• protracted delays in the collection of accounts receivable due to economic, political, and civil instabilities.

We are subject to foreign governmental regulations in some jurisdictions in which we operate that favor or require awarding 
contracts to local contractors or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a certain jurisdiction. 
Such regulations may adversely affect our ability to compete in that jurisdiction. Our operations in some jurisdictions may be 
significantly affected by union activity and general labor unrest. In Argentina and Mexico, particularly, where we have significant 
operations, labor organizations have substantial support and have considerable political influence. In Argentina, the demands of 
labor organizations have increased in recent years and seem likely to continue as a result of the general labor unrest and dissatisfaction 
resulting from the disparity between the cost of living and salaries in Argentina exacerbated by the devaluation of the Argentine 
Peso. There can be no assurance that our operations in Argentina or Mexico will not face labor disruptions in the future or that 
any such disruptions will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. Further, unionization 
efforts have been made from time to time in other jurisdictions in which we operate with varying degrees of success. Any such 
unionization could increase our costs or limit the flexibility in that market.
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Due to unsettled political conditions in many oil-producing countries, our operations, revenue, and profits are subject to adverse 
consequences of war, the effects of terrorism, civil unrest, strikes, currency controls, and governmental actions. These and other 
risks described above could result in the loss of our personnel or assets, cause us to evacuate our personnel from certain countries, 
cause us to increase spending on security worldwide, disrupt financial and commercial markets, including the supply of and pricing 
for oil and natural gas, and generate greater political and economic instability in some of the geographic areas in which we operate. 
Areas where we operate that have significant risk include, but are not limited to:  Argentina, Colombia, Egypt, Indonesia, Iraq, 
Mexico, Russia, and Venezuela. In addition, any possible reprisals as a consequence of military or other action, such as acts of 
terrorism in the United States or elsewhere, could have a material adverse effect on our business, consolidated results of operations, 
and consolidated financial condition. The continuance of our sales to customers, and our operations, in Russia and the region are 
uncertain in light of recent events in Ukraine. Continued political instability, deteriorating macroeconomic conditions, the 
implementation of additional economic sanctions that restrict our ability to do business, and actual or threatened military action 
in the region could have a material adverse effect on our operations in the region and on the result of operations of our Top Drive 
segment.

Our operations are also subject to the risk of information technology disruptions. Cybersecurity incidents, in particular, are evolving 
and include, but are not limited to, malicious software, attempts to gain unauthorized access to data and other electronic security 
breaches that could lead to disruptions in systems, unauthorized release of confidential or otherwise protected information, and 
the corruption of data. We believe that we have implemented appropriate measures to mitigate potential risks to our technology 
and our operations from these information technology disruptions. However, given the unpredictability of the timing, nature and 
scope of information technology disruptions, we could potentially be subject to production downtimes, operational delays, the 
compromising of confidential or otherwise protected information, destruction or corruption of data, security breaches, other 
manipulation or improper use of our systems and networks or financial losses from remedial actions, any of which could have a 
material adverse effect on our cash flows, competitive position, financial condition or results of operations.

Risks associated with our business

We have been party to patent infringement claims and we may not be able to protect or enforce our intellectual property rights.

Some of our products and the processes used to produce them have been granted U.S. and international patent protection, or have 
patent applications pending. Nevertheless, patents may not be granted from our applications and, if patents are issued, the claims 
allowed may not be sufficient to protect our technology. Recent changes in U.S. patent law may have the effect of making certain 
of our patents more likely to be the subject of claims for invalidation.

Our competitors may be able to independently develop technology that is similar to ours without infringing on our patents. This 
is especially true internationally where the protection of intellectual property rights may not be as effective. In addition, obtaining 
and maintaining intellectual property protection internationally may be significantly more expensive than doing so domestically. 
We may have to spend substantial time and money defending our patents. After our patents expire, our competitors will not be 
legally constrained from marketing products substantially similar to ours.

We are subject to legal proceedings and may, in the future, be subject to additional legal proceedings.

In the normal course of our business, we are subject to legal proceedings brought by or against us and our subsidiaries. We are 
currently involved in legal proceedings described in Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 15" 
included in this Report. From time to time, we may become subject to additional legal proceedings which may include contract, 
tort, intellectual property, tax, regulatory compliance and other claims. 

We are also subject to complaints or allegations from former, current, or prospective employees from time to time, alleging 
violations of employment-related laws. Lawsuits or claims could result in decisions against us which could have a material adverse 
effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Our products and services are used in hazardous conditions and we are subject to risks relating to potential liability claims.

Most of our products are used in hazardous drilling and production applications where an accident or a failure of a product can 
have catastrophic consequences. For example, the unexpected failure of a top drive to rotate a drill string during drilling operations 
could result in the loss of control over a well, leading to blowout and the discharge of pollutants into the environment. Damages 
arising from an occurrence at a location where our products are used have in the past and may in the future result in the assertion 
of potentially large claims against us.
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While we attempt to limit our exposure to such risks through contracts with our customers, these measures may not protect us 
against liability for certain kinds of events, including blowouts, cratering, explosions, fires, loss of well control, loss of hole, 
damaged or lost drilling equipment, damage or loss from inclement weather or natural disasters, and losses resulting from business 
interruption. Our insurance coverage generally provides that we assume a portion of the risk in the form of a self-insured retention, 
and may not be adequate in risk coverage or policy limits to cover all losses or liabilities that we may incur. The occurrence of an 
event not fully insured or indemnified against, or the failure of a customer or insurer to meet its indemnification or insurance 
obligations, could result in substantial losses. Moreover, we may not be able in the future to maintain insurance at levels of risk 
coverage or policy limits that we deem adequate. Any significant claims made under our policies will likely cause our premiums 
to increase. Any future damages caused by our products or services that are not covered by insurance, are in excess of policy limits 
or are subject to substantial deductibles, could reduce our earnings and cash available for operations.

Environmental compliance and remediation costs and the costs of environmental liabilities could exceed our estimates.

The energy industry is affected by changes in public policy, federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations. The adoption 
of laws and regulations curtailing exploration and development drilling for oil and natural gas for economic, environmental and 
other policy reasons may adversely affect our operations due to our customers having limited drilling and other opportunities in 
the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry. The operations of our customers, as well as our properties, are subject 
to increasingly stringent laws and regulations relating to environmental protection, including laws and regulations governing air 
emissions, water discharges, waste management and workplace safety.

Our credit facility contains restrictions that may limit our ability to finance future operations or capital needs and could 
accelerate debt payments.

Our credit facility contains covenants which limit the amount of borrowings available by the maintenance of certain financial 
ratios.  Decreases in our financial performance could prohibit us from borrowing amounts under our credit facility, force us to 
make repayments of outstanding debt in order to remain in compliance with these restrictive covenants, or accelerate our debt 
payments and other financing obligations and those of our subsidiaries. Additionally, our credit agreements are collateralized by 
equity interests in our subsidiaries.  A breach of the covenants under these agreements could permit the lenders to exercise their 
rights to foreclose on these collateral interests.   If this were to occur, we might not be able to repay such debt and other financing 
obligations. These restrictions may negatively impact our ability to finance future operations, implement our business strategy or 
fund our capital needs. Compliance with these financial ratios may be affected by events beyond our control, including the risks 
and uncertainties described in the other risk factors discussed elsewhere in this report.

For further discussion of our credit facility, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 10" included 
in this Report.

We have a revolving credit facility that is not contracted at current market rates.

In April 2012, we amended our credit agreement to provide a revolving line of credit of $125 million including up to $20 million 
of swing line loans.  The credit facility has a term of five years and all outstanding borrowings on the credit agreement are due 
and payable on April 27, 2017. As of December 31, 2014, we had $3.8 million in letters of credit outstanding under this credit 
facility.

At this time it is difficult to forecast the future state of the bank loan market. As a result of the uncertain state of various financial 
institutions and the credit markets generally, we may be unable to maintain our current borrowing capacity in the event of bank 
or banks failure to fund any commitments under the current credit facility, and we may not be able to refinance our bank facility 
in the same amount and on the same terms as we currently hold, which could negatively impact our liquidity and results of 
operations.
 
We provide warranties on our products and if our products fail to operate properly our business will suffer.

We provide warranties as to the proper operation and conformance to specifications of the equipment we manufacture. Our products 
are often deployed in harsh environments including subsea applications. The failure of these products to operate properly or to 
meet specifications may increase our costs by requiring additional engineering resources and services, replacement of parts and 
equipment or monetary reimbursement to a customer. We have experienced quality problems with raw material vendors, which 
required us to recall and replace certain equipment and components. We have also received warranty claims and we expect to 
continue to receive them in the future. Such claims may exceed the reserve we have set aside for them. To the extent that we incur 
substantial warranty claims in any period because of quality issues with our products, our reputation, ability to obtain future 
business and earnings could be materially and adversely affected.
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Our profitability is driven to a large extent by our ability to deliver the products we manufacture in a timely manner.

Disruptions to our production schedule may adversely impact our ability to meet delivery commitments. If we fail to deliver 
products according to contract terms, we may suffer financial penalties and a diminution of our commercial reputation and future 
product orders.

We rely on the availability of raw materials, component parts and finished products to produce our products.

We buy raw materials, components and precision machining or sub-assembly services from many different vendors located in 
Canada, the U.S., Europe, South East Asia and the Middle East. The price and lead times for some products have fluctuated along 
with the general changes of steel prices around the world. We also source a substantial amount of electrical components, including 
permanent magnet motors and drives as well as a substantial amount of hydraulic components, including hydraulic motors, from 
suppliers located in the U.S. and abroad.  The inability of suppliers to meet performance, quality specifications, and delivery 
schedules could cause delays in manufacturing and make it difficult or impossible for us to meet outstanding orders or accept new 
orders for the manufacture of the affected equipment.  In addition, the lack of an efficient supply chain could cause us to hold 
higher levels of inventory.

The design of some of our equipment is based on components provided by specific sole source manufacturers.

Some of our products have been designed around components which are only available from one source of supply. In some cases, 
a manufacturer has developed or modified the design of a component at our request, and consequently we are the only purchaser 
of such items. If the manufacturer of such an item should go out of business or cease or refuse to manufacture the component in 
question, or raise the price of such components unduly, we may have to identify alternative components and redesign portions of 
our equipment. This could cause delays in manufacturing and make it difficult or impossible for us to meet outstanding orders or 
accept new orders for the manufacture of the affected equipment.

Our business requires the retention and recruitment of a skilled workforce and key employees, and the loss of such employees 
could result in the failure to implement our business plans.

As a technology-based company, we depend upon skilled engineering and other professionals in order to engage in product 
innovation and ensure the effective implementation of our innovative technology. We compete for these professionals, not only 
with other companies in the same industry, but with oil and natural gas service companies generally and other industries. In periods 
of high energy and industrial manufacturing activity, demand for the skills and expertise of these professionals increases, which 
can make the hiring and retention of these individuals more difficult and expensive. Failure to recruit and retain such individuals 
may result in our inability to maintain a competitive advantage over other companies and loss of customer satisfaction.   The loss 
or incapacity of certain key employees for any reason, including our President and Chief Executive Officer, Fernando R. Assing, 
could have a negative impact on our ability to implement our business plan due to the specialized knowledge these individuals 
possess. We do not maintain key man insurance on any of our personnel. 

Our business relies on the skills and availability of trained and experienced trades and technicians to provide efficient and necessary 
services to us and our customers. Hiring and retaining such individuals are critical to the success of our business plan. Retention 
of staff and the prevention of injury to staff are essential in order to provide a high level of service.

We may be unable to identify or complete acquisitions.

Acquisitions have been and may continue to be an element of our business strategy.  We can give no assurance that we will be 
able to secure, close, or integrate successfully the assets and operations of acquired businesses with our own business. Any inability 
on our part to integrate and manage the growth of acquired businesses may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations 
and financial condition. We can give no assurance that we will be able to identify and acquire additional businesses in the future 
on terms favorable to us.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2.  Properties.
 
The following table details our principal facilities, including all properties that we own and those leased properties that serve as 
corporate or regional headquarters as of December 31, 2014.

 

Location

Approximate
Square Footage

(Buildings)

Owned 
or

Leased Description
Houston, Texas, United States
of America

26,500 Leased Corporate headquarters.

Houston, Texas, United States
of America

89,893 Owned Regional headquarters for North American operations in Top 
Drive and Tubular Services, and our U.S. regional operations 
base which also provides equipment repair and maintenance 
for U.S. and certain overseas operations.

Kilgore, Texas, United States
of America

20,536 Owned Regional operations base for the Tubular Services segment in
east Texas and northern Louisiana.

Lafayette, Louisiana, United
States of America

43,300 Owned Regional operations base for the Tubular Services segment in
southern Louisiana and the Gulf of Mexico.

Calgary, Alberta, Canada 90,592 Owned Assembly of top drives and other equipment.
Mexico City, Distrito Federal,
Mexico

4,500 Leased Regional headquarters for Latin America, including Mexico.

Moscow, Russia 5,576 Leased Regional headquarters for Russia.

Buftea, Romania 13,562 Leased Regional headquarters for Europe and West Africa.

Dubai, United Arab Emirates 10,000 Leased Regional headquarters for the Middle East, North Africa, and
East Africa.

Cairo, Egypt 6,562 Owned Regional operations base for the Tubular Services segment in
Egypt.

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 4,950 Leased Regional headquarters for the Asia Pacific region.

In addition, we lease operational facilities at locations in Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Texas, and Wyoming. Each of these locations 
supports operations in its local area, primarily for the Tubular Services segment.

Outside the U.S., some of our additional leased operating facilities are in Argentina, Australia, Canada, China, Colombia, Dubai, 
Ecuador, Egypt, Indonesia, Malaysia, Mexico, Romania, Russia, Saudi Arabia, Republic of Singapore, the United Kingdom, and 
Venezuela. The majority of these facilities support the Top Drive and Tubular Services segments.

We consider our existing equipment and facilities to be adequate to support our operations.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.

In the normal course of our business, we are subject to legal proceedings brought by or against us and our subsidiaries. None of 
these proceedings involves a claim for damages exceeding ten percent of our current assets on a consolidated basis. See Part II, 
Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 15" included in this Report for a summary of certain closed and 
ongoing legal proceedings. Such information is incorporated into this Part I, Item 3, "Legal Proceedings" in this Report by reference.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures.

None.



15

PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 
Securities.

Market Information

Our outstanding shares of common stock are traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market ("NASDAQ") under the symbol "TESO." The 
following table outlines the share price trading range by quarter for 2014 and 2013.

 Share Price Trading Range
 High Low
2014 ($ per share)

1st Quarter $ 21.55 $ 16.30
2nd Quarter 22.50 17.74
3rd Quarter 22.30 18.92
4th Quarter 19.99 11.53

2013   
1st Quarter $ 14.00 $ 11.50
2nd Quarter 13.70 11.05
3rd Quarter 17.09 12.60
4th Quarter 20.12 15.49

 
As of March 31, 2015, there were approximately 218 holders of record of our common stock, including brokers and other nominees.

Dividend Policy

On May 5, 2014 the Company's Board of Directors (the "Board") approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend. Cash 
dividends aggregated $6.0 million and $0.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The declaration 
and payment of future dividends is at the discretion of the Board and will be dependent upon the Company's results, financial 
condition, capital requirements and other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

Stock Repurchase Program

On May 2, 2014, the Board authorized a common stock repurchase program (the "Program"), which permits us to repurchase up 
to $100,000,000 USD of our current shares outstanding. The repurchase of the common shares was conducted as a normal course 
issuer bid ("NCIB"). This Board authorization expires June 30, 2016.

As share repurchase activity under our share repurchase program began in July 2014, the activity for each of the six months ended 
December 31, 2014 was as follows (all shares were cancelled upon purchase):

Period

Total
Number of

Shares
Purchased

Average
Price Paid
Per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs

Approximate Dollar 
Value of Shares that May 
Yet Be Purchased Under 
the Plans or Programs

(millions)
July 1 - July 31 237,673 $ 20.66 237,673 $ 95.1
August 1 - August 31 138,795 $ 20.97 138,795 $ 92.2
September 1 - September 30 340,007 $ 20.74 340,007 $ 85.1
October 1 - October 31 — $ — — $ 85.1
November 1 - November 30 82,035 $ 16.38 82,035 $ 83.8
December 1 - December 31 836,207 $ 13.28 836,207 $ 72.7

1,634,717 1,634,717
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph and table compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative shareholder return for the 
five year period commencing on December 31, 2009 and ending on December 31, 2014 on our common shares (assuming a $100 
investment was made on December 31, 2009) with the total cumulative return of the S&P 500 Composite Index, Russell 2000 
Index, and the Philadelphia Oil Service Sector Index ("OSX"), assuming reinvestment of dividends. We have elected to utilize the 
Russell 2000 Index in the future, in place of the S&P 500 Composite Index, due to the index's better aligning with our market 
capitalization. The Russell 2000 Index is constructed to provide a comprehensive and unbiased small-cap barometer and is 
completely reconstituted annually to ensure larger stocks do not distort the performance and characteristics of the true small-cap 
opportunity set.

 

 Dec 31, 2009 Dec 31, 2010 Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2014

 Tesco Corp. $ 100 $ 123 $ 98 $ 88 $ 153 $ 100

 OSX $ 100 $ 126 $ 111 $ 113 $ 144 $ 108

 S & P 500 $ 100 $ 152 $ 152 $ 173 $ 224 $ 249

 Russell 2000 $ 100 $ 125 $ 118 $ 136 $ 186 $ 193
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with "Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of this report.

 

Years Ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(in millions, except per share data)

Summary of operations
Operating revenues $ 543.0 $ 524.9 $ 553.2 $ 513.1 $ 378.7
Net income from continuing operations 21.4 35.3 50.2 25.8 7.7

Per share Data
Basic earnings per share $ 0.54 $ 0.90 $ 1.30 $ 0.68 $ 0.20
Diluted earnings per share 0.53 0.89 1.28 0.66 0.20
Cash dividends declared 0.15 — — — —

Balance sheet data
Total assets $ 619.3 $ 634.7 $ 585.6 $ 546.6 $ 453.5
Long term obligations (including capital leases) — 0.5 0.3 6.6 —

We made adjustments to correct immaterial misstatements within this selected financial data. For a detailed explanation of 
these adjustments, please refer to Note 2, Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements. These adjustments also effected years 
2011 and 2010. There was a $0.1 million increase of operating revenues in 2011 and no impact to Operating revenues for 2010, 
while Net income from continuing operations increased $1.2 million and $0.7 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively. Total 
assets decreased $2.6 million and $1.4 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Factors affecting comparability
 

• In 2014, we recorded a selling, general and administrative expense of $1.5 million related to a dispute with a third 
party in Asia Pacific.

• We sold 4 top drives from our rental fleet in 2014, compared to 12 in 2013. As these units have a higher margin, we 
saw a decrease in our net income from continuing operations.

• On May 5, 2014, we approved our initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share to our common 
shareholders. The first quarterly dividend was declared in the second quarter of 2014 and has been approved and 
paid each successive quarter.

• On May 2, 2014, the Board authorized a common stock repurchase program, under which we repurchased over 1.6 
million shares for total cash value of approximately $27.3 million in 2014.

• In 2014, we recorded additional warranty expense of $1.5 million for quills installed on specific top drive units. In 
2013, we recorded a $1.1 million warranty expense in regards to the torque arrest systems. In 2012, we recorded 
additional warranty expense of $4.4 million for ESI gear box issues. For detailed discussion of the 2014 and 2013 
matters, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 14" included in this Report.

• In 2013 and 2012, we recorded a $1.4 million and $12.4 million pre-tax gain on the sale of the Casing Drilling 
business, respectively. For detailed discussion of this matter, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data, Note 4" included in this Report.

• In 2011, we saw a significant increase in revenues due to increased demand, both domestically and internationally 
for top drives and our proprietary tubular services that approached the pre-recession levels.

• In 2011, we assumed $7.4 million of outstanding debt as part of the acquisition of Premiere Casing Services - Egypt 
S.A.E. ("Premiere"). At December 31, 2011, the balance of this debt was $5.6 million related to capital leases and 
$1.1 million related to notes payable. In 2012, we paid off all of the outstanding balances related to Premiere's notes 
payable and a significant amount of the outstanding balances related to Premiere's capital leases.
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") is intended 
to help the reader understand our operations and our present business environment.  MD&A is provided as a supplement to — and 
should be read in conjunction with - our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying footnotes included in Part II, 
Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" included in this Report.  During the fourth quarter of 2014, we identified 
errors primarily in accounting for foreign currency in Latin America resulting in an immaterial correction of errors in our previously 
issued consolidated financial statements.  These corrections have been reflected in our MD&A discussions. These corrections are  
discussed further in Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 2" included in this Report.  Our MD&A 
includes forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties that may result in actual results differing from the 
statements we make.  These risks and uncertainties are discussed further in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors" included in this Report.

Overview

We are a global technology leader and provider of highly engineered solutions for drilling, servicing, and completion of wells with 
facilities in North America, Europe, Russia, Latin America, Middle East, and Asia Pacific. Our operations consist of top drive 
sales, rentals, after-market sales and services, and our tubular sales and services. 

Our revenues and operating results are directly related to the level of worldwide oil and gas drilling and production activities and 
the profitability and cash flow of exploration and production companies and drilling contractors, which are affected by current 
and anticipated oil and gas prices.

Unless indicated otherwise, results of operations data are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States ("GAAP").

Our Segments

Our operating structure is the basis for our internal and external financial reporting. As of December 31, 2014, our operating 
structure included the following business segments: (i) Top Drives, (ii) Tubular Services, (iii) Research & Engineering, and (iv) 
Corporate and Other. Prior to the third quarter of 2012, we also had a Casing Drilling operating segment. Substantially all of the 
assets of the Casing Drilling segment were sold in June of 2012. For detailed discussion of segments, see Part I, Item 1, "Business" 
included in this Report.

Business Environment

Our revenues are dependent on the level of worldwide oil and gas wells drilled, the price of crude oil and natural gas, capital 
spending by oil field companies and drilling contractors, the level of worldwide oil and gas reserves inventory, civil unrest and 
conflicts in oil producing countries, oil sanctions, and global economics, among other things. The profitability of exploration and 
production companies and drilling contractors are effected by the current and anticipated prices of crude oil. Profitability is a key 
factor in their willingness to invest in new exploration and production activities which is reflected in rig and well counts.

Our business is dependent on both the rig count and well count. Rig count is an important business barometer for the drilling 
industry and its suppliers. When drilling rigs are active they consume products and services produced by the oil service industry. 
Rig count trends are governed by the exploration and development spending by exploration and production companies, which in 
turn is influenced by current and future price expectations for oil and gas. Therefore, the count may reflect the relative strength 
and stability of energy prices and overall market activity. However, these counts should not be solely relied on as an indicator of 
the economic condition of our industry, as other specific and pervasive conditions may exist that affect overall energy prices and 
market activity.  Well count is another important business barometer for our industry.  It is important to look at rig count in 
conjunction with the well count.
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Below is a table that shows the average rig count by region for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

 Average Rig Count(1) Increase (Decrease)
 2014 2013 2012 2013 to 2014 2012 to 2013
U.S. 1,862 1,761 1,919 101 6% (158) (8)%
Canada 380 355 365 25 7% (10) (3)%
Latin America 397 419 423 (22) (5)% (4) (1)%
Asia Pacific 406 372 356 34 9% 16 4%
Middle East 254 246 241 8 3% 5 2%
Africa 145 125 119 20 16% 6 5%
Europe 134 135 96 (1) (1)% 39 41%
Worldwide 3,578 3,413 3,519 165 5% (106) (3)%

Below is a table that shows well count by region for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

 
Well Counts (2)

For Years Ended December 31,
 2015 2014 2013 2012

 (forecast)(2)    
U.S. 37,997 47,402 44,198 44,732
Canada 7,362 10,513 10,337 10,711
Latin America 4,163 4,116 4,750 4,635
Europe, Africa, Middle East (including Russia) 13,222 14,072 14,221 14,511
Far East (including China) 28,142 28,024 29,706 27,168
Worldwide 90,886 104,127 103,212 101,757

Outlook

The effect and duration of oil and gas price downturns are unpredictable. Based upon the simple average of three spot prices(3); 
Dated Brent, West Texas Intermediate, and the Dubai Fateh in U.S. dollars per barrel, we began to see a decline in the price of 
crude oil. The decline began after the average reached a high of $108.37 per barrel in June 2014. This decline continued throughout 
the year where it ended with an average price of $60.55 per barrel as of December 2014.  We continue to see this decline going 
into the current year with the prices averaging $54.93 per barrel as of February 2015. 

The price of crude oil directly affects exploration and production companies' profitability and more importantly their willingness 
to drill new wells. As a result, we expect to see an overall decline in the number of new wells drilled and the average rig count 
during 2015.  Due to certain economic conditions including, but not limited to, oil and gas inventory reserves, and production 
rates globally, it is anticipated that this downturn may continue to last more than just a few months.  A long term continued slowdown 
__________________________________

(1) Source:  Baker Hughes Incorporated worldwide rig count; averages are monthly. The Baker Hughes International Rotary 
Rig Count is a monthly census of active drilling rigs exploring for or developing oil or natural gas outside North America 
(U.S. and Canada). The Baker Hughes International Rotary Rig Count does not include rigs drilling in Russia, the Caspian 
region, Iran, Sudan, Cuba, North Korea or onshore China. Iraq was excluded from the International Rotary Rig Count for 
the period September 1990 to May 2012. Syria is currently excluded from the International Rotary Rig Count as of February 
2012 due to difficulty obtaining data as a result of continued civil unrest.  To be counted as active, a rig must be on location 
and be drilling or 'turning to the right'. A rig is considered active from the moment the well is "spudded" until it reaches 
target depth or "TD". Rigs that are in transit from one location to another, rigging up or being used in non-drilling activities 
such as workovers, completions or production testing, are not counted as active.

(2) Source:  World Oil Forecast and Data Executive Summary 2015
(3) Source:  IndexMundi
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in drilling operations would adversely affect our business and results of operations.  While monitoring the commodity prices will 
be the first indicator of movement in the market, the impact on the number of wells drilled and associated drilling rigs will serve 
as the primary indicator of our ability to achieve desired results.

In the event of an extended downturn, we believe we are well positioned and should benefit from our strong balance sheet, liquidity, 
access to credit, global infrastructure, broad product and service offerings, and installed base of equipment. As of December 31, 
2014, we had $72.5 million in cash and equivalents, and no long term outstanding debt obligations with access to $121.2 million 
in credit available on our revolver.  We have a long history of cost-control and downsizing in response to slowing market conditions 
and of quickly executing strategic opportunities enabling us to capitalize on new growth initiatives. 

The current economic conditions are challenging. However, we see them as potential opportunities in those regions in which we 
already maintain a presence. While we have transitioned from a primarily North American revenue centric company to generating 
more revenue globally over the past few years, our position in many of these international markets still leaves significant growth 
opportunities in spite of the current economic conditions.  We plan to expand our service offerings in those areas in which we 
already have facilities and capital resources. We are focusing on offering longer-term service contracts.  We feel that our global 
infrastructure is in place and we have the capacity to offer additional after-market sales and services without incurring significant 
additional capital expenditures to grow these markets. We feel this provides us with a competitive advantage.  We plan to use our 
existing facilities as a base to promote our after-market sales and services, to include, but not limited to, long-term maintenance 
contracts, Automated Rig Controls ("ARC"), and Equipment Health Monitoring services.  These services are also compatible with 
our competitors' top drives.  We believe that top drives are at the point in their life-cycle where we will begin to see a steady 
increase in the need for service, maintenance, and recertification.

Until recently, our tubular services business was primarily focused on onshore drilling for our sales and services. With land-based 
drilling consistently moving toward horizontal drilling, the value from automated casing running tools, specifically our CDS 
offering, has served as the foundation of our land focus. The market and our customers have realized great benefit from the 
performance of our casing running tools and our approach to providing new solutions and have provided us with the opportunity 
to increase our expansion to offshore markets.  We feel that there is a significant opportunity for growth in the offshore market, 
including the market for our automated tubular services and equipment.  Our automated services require fewer people to operate, 
reducing expense, and promoting safety and service quality which is highly desirable in offshore drilling.  We plan to use our 
offshore expertise that we gained in Indonesia, Saudi Arabia, North America, and the North Sea to increase our offshore market 
presence globally. We are promoting our record of safety, service quality, and reliability in an attempt to gain market share.  In 
addition, offshore operations are long term in nature and, therefore, less effected by short term swings in crude oil prices.

We plan to continue to invest in research and engineering related to our top drive and tubular services segments to capitalize on 
growth opportunities while taking steps to better integrate our products and service offerings with our customers' needs.
 
Results of Operations

The discussions below relating to significant line items from our consolidated statements of income are based on available 
information and represent our analysis of significant changes or events that impact the comparability of reported amounts. Where 
appropriate, we have identified specific events and changes that affect comparability or trends and, where reasonably practicable, 
have quantified the impact of such items. This discussion should be read in conjunction with Pat II, Item 8, Financial Statements 
and Supplementary Data included in this Report.
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Operating results by business segments

Below is a summary of the operating results of our business segments for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 
(in thousands, except percentages):

 Year Ended December 31, Increase/Decrease
 2014 2013 2012 2013 to 2014 2012 to 2013
Segment revenue
Top Drive revenue

Sales $ 142,589 $ 127,189 $ 166,722 $ 15,400 12% $ (39,533) (24)%
Rental services 103,718 125,119 126,157 (21,401) (17)% (1,038) (1)%
After-Market sales and services 72,479 59,262 64,908 13,217 22% (5,646) (9)%

318,786 311,570 357,787 7,216 2% (46,217) (13)%
Tubular Services revenue

Automated $ 181,562 $ 171,848 $ 141,260 9,714 6% 30,588 22%
Conventional 42,580 40,823 41,213 1,757 4% (390) (1)%

224,142 212,671 182,473 11,471 5% 30,198 17%

Casing Drilling 63 624 12,893 (561) (90)% (12,269) (95)%
Revenue $ 542,991 $ 524,865 $ 553,153 $ 18,126 3% $ (28,288) (5)%

Segment operating income       
Top Drive $ 58,628 $ 67,998 $ 87,519 $ (9,370) (14)% $ (19,521) (22)%
Tubular Services 35,514 35,850 22,237 (336) (1)% 13,613 61%
Casing Drilling (632) 2,124 8,184 (2,756) (130)% (6,060) (74)%

Research and engineering (9,574) (8,578) (10,457) (996) (12)% 1,879 18%
Corporate and other (37,393) (42,554) (30,316) 5,161 12% (12,238) (40)%

 Operating income $ 46,543 $ 54,840 $ 77,167 $ (8,297) (15)% $ (22,327) (29)%

Top Drive segment

Revenues from our top drive segment are generated through sales, rentals, and after-market sales and service. Sales of top drives 
consist of new and used top drives and catwalks.  Our rental fleet of top drives are mobile. We set up the units on the customers 
drill site and charge for rental operating days based on a daily rate. Rental operating days are defined as a day that a unit in our 
rental fleet is under contract and operating. 

Our after-market sales and service consists of providing parts and servicing units.  We provide these services for both our top 
drives and those of our competitors. Prior to the second quarter of 2014, we only provided after-market sales and services for our 
proprietary top drives. 

2014 as compared with 2013 

Sales
Revenues increased by $15.4 million, or 12%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to the sale of an additional 14 top drives. In 2014, 
we sold a total of 114 top drives, of which 110 were new and 4 were from our rental fleet, as compared to the previous year, where 
we sold 100 top drives, of which 88 were new and 12 were from our rental fleet.  North America experienced a significant increase 
in the number of top drives sold in 2014 due to increased market demand driven by an increased rig count.  We also increased our 
sales focus and resources in Asia Pacific and the Middle East, effectively increasing sales by 60% in those regions.  This increase 
was partially offset by a decrease in product sales in Russia related to complexities surrounding economic and political issues, as 
well as devaluation of the Russian Ruble during 2014.  
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Although we sold more top drives in 2014, our average revenue per top drive unit sold decreased based on the model mix of new 
top drives and the scope of supply.  Revenues related to the sale of top drives from our rental fleet were $4.3 million and $9.9 
million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Rental Services
Revenues decreased by $21.4 million, or 17%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to a decrease in the number of rental operating 
days by 2,510 days and a slight decrease in the average daily rate by $390 per day which was due to pricing pressures. The majority 
of this decrease was due to a decrease in activity in Latin America, especially Mexico. Our revenues in this region were also 
negatively impacted by various currency devaluations and price rationalization, as compared to 2013.  In addition, Russia 
contributed to the decline due to political and economic issues, devaluation of the Russian ruble, and an increase in low cost 
competition within the region.

The rental fleet size increased to 135 units, up 6 units year over year. The increase was due to the acquisition of Tech Field Services, 
LLC ("TFS" - See Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 5" in this Report) and the introduction of 
our new 150 Ton HXI technology.

After-Market Sales and Services
Revenues increased by $13.2 million, or 22%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 primarily due to a 18% increase in part sales and 
recertification revenue in North America.  Additionally, the acquisition of TFS (See Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data, Note 5" in this Report) in the current year contributed to 30% of the increase in the volume of North American 
sales. Our operational revenues in the Middle East increased by 4% of the total variance caused by a higher volume of top drive 
recertifications as compared to 2013, as we continue to increase our market share in the region. 

Operating Income
Top drive operating income decreased by $9.4 million, or 14%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to an increase in our direct costs 
coupled with pricing pressures, driving down our margins overall.  In addition, the volume of sales within our product mix and 
used unit pricing effectively reduced our margins in 2014.

We recorded a bad debt expense of $4.5 million in 2014, of which $3.6 million, $0.4 million, and $0.4 million related to Latin 
America, the Middle East, and Russia, respectively, and is based on collectability concerns, given currency devaluation in certain 
markets, and the sharp decline in oil prices during the fourth quarter.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded $2.5 million of charges related to our operations in Venezuela due to deteriorating 
political conditions, business environment, and security over the last year that have pointed towards ever increasing risk in the 
country. Further, the continued devaluation of local currency coupled with delayed and/or uncollectable payments from customers 
have caused the Company to incur losses.  These charges included a $0.3 million loss on impairment related to assets held for use, 
a $0.8 million write-down of our inventory to lower of cost or market, and $1.4 million increase of bad debt expense regarding 
the collectability of receivables.

2013 as compared with 2012  

Sales
Revenues decreased by $39.5 million, or 24%,  in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to the fact that our selling price per unit varies 
significantly depending on the model, whether the unit was previously operated in our rental fleet and whether a power unit was 
included in the sale. We sold 31 fewer top drives in 2013 than we did in the prior year.  In 2013, we sold 100 top drives of which 
88 were new and 12 were from our rental fleet, as compared to 131 top drives of which 121 were new and 10 were from our rental 
fleet in 2012.  Revenue related to the sale of used top drives was $9.9 million and $13.5 million during 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Rental Services
Revenues decreased by $1.0 million, or 1%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to the decrease in rental operating days which 
resulted from lower rig counts in North America during 2013. Our rental fleet increased by 3 units in 2012 and then decreased by 
6 units during 2013 to react to the demand of our customers for rental services. As of December 31, 2013, we had 129 top drives 
in our rental fleet. 

After-Market Sales and Services
Revenues decreased by $5.6 million, or 9%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 primarily due to a lower rig count in North America. 
The decrease in activity resulted in lower part sales and demand for repair work and recertifications.
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Operating Income
Top Drive operating income decreased by $19.5 million, or 22%, as compared to 2012 due to the decrease in top drive sales 
combined with a decrease in revenues from our after-market sales and services. In addition, during 2012 we recorded an additional 
warranty expense of $4.4 million associated with our ESI top drive model. 

Tubular Services segment

We generate revenues in our tubular services business from the performance of both automated and conventional services augmented 
by sales of products, accessories, and consumables for the casing running process. In our services, we provide the personnel and 
equipment, including the CDSTM, power tongs, pick-up/lay-down units, torque monitoring services, and connection testing services 
for new well completion and in work-over or re-entry operations.  Our product sales includes the CDS system, down well 
consumables, and other non-consumable parts.

2014 as compared with 2013 

Automated Services
Revenues increased by $9.7 million, or 6%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to increases in Latin America and the Middle East 
of 9% and 1% of the total variance, respectively. This was offset by an overall 4% decrease in Asia Pacific, Europe, Russia, and 
North America.  In 2014, we experienced an overall increase of 4% in the number of jobs performed over 2013. The increase in 
Latin America was primarily due to non-retrievable casing drilling services performed within the region during 2014 and an 
increase in our market share overall.  The increase in the Middle East is due to an expanding market in which we continue to gain 
market share and invest within this region.  The decrease in Asia Pacific was due to a temporary slowdown of activities in certain 
markets caused by political factors. Our Russian operations experienced a decline due to political instability and economic issues, 
the devaluation of the Russian Ruble, and an increase in competition within the region which reduced the number of CDS units 
sold.

Conventional Services
Revenues increased by $1.8 million, or 4%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to increases in Latin America and the Middle East 
of 5% and 2%, respectively.  We invested additional capital and resources in these regions in order to increase our overall volume 
of services provided as we continue to gain more jobs. This was offset by a 3% decrease in North America due to a reduction of 
drilling operations in Canada that led to fewer jobs and increased pricing competition.

Operating Income
Tubular Services operating income decreased by $0.3 million, or 1%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 primarily due lower profitability 
in Asia Pacific, Europe, Russia, North America, and the Middle East. Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in profitability 
in Latin America based on the mix of services performed and increases to market share.  Salaries and other related costs increased 
$1.8 million to support the growth of infrastructure and revenues over the last two years. Depreciation and amortization expense 
was also $1.4 million higher than the prior year.  Our operating income was also negatively impacted in 2014 by an increase in 
bad debt expense of $2.4 million, of which $1.3 million related to a third party in Malaysia and $0.8 million related to Venezuela.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we recorded $0.6 million of charges related to our operations in Venezuela due to deteriorating 
political conditions, business environment, and security over the last year that have pointed towards ever increasing risk in the 
country. Further, the continued devaluation of local currency coupled with delayed and/or uncollectible payments from customers 
have caused the Company to incur losses.  These charges included a $0.2 million loss on impairment related to assets held for use, 
a $0.2 million write-down of our inventory to lower of cost or market, and $0.2 million increase of bad debt expense regarding 
the collectability of receivables.

2013 as compared with 2012 

Automated Services
Revenues increased by $30.6 million, or 22%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to a 14% increase in the number of jobs performed 
in 2013 over 2012. We also sold an additional $9.4 million in casing drive system equipment as compared to the prior year. 

Conventional Services
Revenues decreased by $0.4 million, or 1%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to slower demand for our conventional service.  We 
saw a shift in demand from conventional to automated tubular services.
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Operating Income
Tubular Services operating income increased by $13.6 million, or 61%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to increased number of 
jobs associated with our automated services, which have higher margins than our conventional services, and the increase in casing 
drive system equipment sales from prior year.

 Casing Drilling segment

We generated revenues in our casing drilling business by selling services related to our proprietary Casing Drilling System. This 
system uses patented equipment and processes to allow an oil or gas well to be drilled using standard well casing pipe.  On June 
4, 2012, we completed the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Casing Drilling segment to the Schlumberger Group.  For 
further discussion of the disposition of our Casing Drilling business, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary 
Data, Note 4" included in this Report.

2014 as compared with 2013 

Operating Income
The 2014 Casing Drilling activity was due to casing drilling part sales. Beginning in 2015 results achieved in casing drilling will 
be incorporated as part of our tubular services segment.

2013 as compared with 2012  

Revenues
Revenues decreased by $12.3 million, or 95%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to the sale of substantially all of the assets of the 
business in the second quarter of 2012. Revenues booked in 2013 were due to residual contracts not associated with the sale of 
the assets flowing through the income statements.

Operating Income
Casing Drilling operating income decreased by $6.1 million, or 74%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to the sale of substantially 
all of the assets of the business in the second quarter of 2012.  The majority of the operating income for 2013 relates to a working 
capital adjustment gain of $1.4 million related to the sale. 

Research and Engineering segment

We are a technology-based company.  We continue to invest in our research and engineering in order to continually develop, 
commercialize, and enhance our proprietary products relating to our current product offerings and new technologies in development. 

2014 as compared with 2013 

Expenses increased by $1.0 million, or 12%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to an increase in research and engineering activities 
related to new product development, expenditures in automation and compact projects, and a new test rig facility.  

2013 as compared with 2012 
 
Expenses decreased by $1.9 million or 18% in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to the sale of substantially all of the assets of the 
casing drilling segment in 2012, as we no longer performed research and engineering services for that business. 

Corporate and Other segment

Corporate and other expenses primarily consist of the corporate level overhead, general and administrative expenses, and certain 
selling and marketing expenses.  Corporate and other expenses as a percent of revenues were 7%, 8%, and 5% for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

2014 as compared with 2013 

Operating expenses decreased by $5.2 million, or 12%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 primarily due to a decrease in litigation fees, 
a reduction in long-term and short-term incentive compensation, and executive departure cost.
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2013 as compared with 2012 

Expenses in 2013 increased by $12.2 million, or 40%, as compared to 2012 due to an increase in general and administrative long-
term and short-term incentive compensation of $3.8 million, increased legal fees of $2.9 million, and increased costs associated 
with centralized operations support personnel and other related increases of $5.3 million. 

Other Expenses

Below is a detail of expenses that are not allocated to segments for the years ended December 31, 2014, and 2013 (in thousands, 
except percentages):

Year ended December, 31 Increase / Decrease
2014 2013 2012 2013 to 2014 2013 to 2012

Interest expense 1,193 1,001 1,219 192 19 % (218) (18)%
Interest income (204) (170) (195) (34) (20)% 25 13%
Foreign exchange losses 7,140 5,270 2,749 1,870 35 % 2,521 92%
Other expense (income) (30) (1,547) (1,968) 1,517 98 % 421 21%
Income before taxes 38,444 50,286 75,362 (11,842) (24)% (25,076) (33)%
Income tax provision 17,008 15,002 25,185 2,006 13 % (10,183) (40)%
Net income $ 21,436 $ 35,284 $ 50,177 $ (13,848) (39)% $ (14,893) (30)%

2014 as compared with 2013 

Interest Expense
Interest expense increased by $0.2 million, or 19%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due a non-recurring reversal of penalties and 
interest related to the Mexico tax amnesty program in 2013.

Foreign Exchange Losses
Although our functional currency is the U.S. dollar on a global basis, our operations have net assets and liabilities not denominated 
in the functional currency, which exposes us to changes in foreign currency exchange rates that impact income. Foreign exchange 
losses increased by $1.9 million, or 35%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to currency devaluations primarily in Latin America 
and Russia. During 2014, we saw declines in the Argentine Peso, Mexican Peso, Venezuelan Bolivar, and Russian Ruble relative 
to the US Dollar of 23.4%, 11.4%, 693.7%, and 41.8%, respectively. We continue to take steps to minimize our foreign currency 
exposure in these regions.

Other Expenses
Other expenses increased by $1.5 million, or 98%, in 2014 as compared to 2013 due to a reversal of $1.8 million of other expense 
in 2013 related to the Mexico Amnesty program in which we participated. This was offset by losses of $0.3 million on disposals 
associated with our Russian operations in 2014.

Income Tax Provision
Income tax provision increased by $2.0 million, or 13%, as compared to 2013 primarily due to the fluctuating mix of pre-tax 
earnings in the various tax jurisdictions in which we operate around the world. Additionally, $1.4 million of favorable tax settlements 
in foreign jurisdictions were recorded in 2013 compared to $0.9 million of additional liability related to uncertain tax benefits 
recorded in 2014. Our effective tax rates were 44% and 30% for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

2013 as compared with 2012 

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased $0.2 million, or 18%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 primarily due to a non-recurring accrual in the prior 
year for interest expense associated with a foreign tax issue. Also, we had non-recurring interest expense in 2012 due to drawing 
down and incurring interest on our $10 million line of credit to fund working capital needs. The line of credit was repaid in 2012. 

Foreign Exchange Losses
Foreign exchange losses increased by $2.5 million, or 92%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 due to fluctuations in the valuation of 
the U.S. dollar compared to other currencies in which we transact around the world.  The majority of the loss was due to fluctuations 
in currencies in Latin America which accounted for $2.7 million of the increase as compared to prior year.  This was partially 
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offset by a net increase in foreign exchange gains of $0.3 million in our Europe, Russia, Middle East, and Asia Pacific operations.  
The majority of these losses associated with Latin America were from Venezuela.

Other Income
Other income reflects gains and losses on sales of non-operating assets, penalties, and other miscellaneous expense (income).  In 
2013, we participated in an amnesty program for tax issues in a foreign jurisdiction.  The impact of this program was recognized 
in the first quarter of 2013 by reversing $1.8 million of other expense previously accrued for this issue.  In 2012, we recorded a 
reduction of $3.1 million previously expensed for a legacy withholding tax issue in a foreign jurisdiction based on favorable 
determinations received in April 2012 and January 2013.  This reduction was partially off-set by penalties accrued during 2012 
for tax assessments in foreign jurisdictions. 

Income Tax Provision
Income tax provision decreased by $10.2 million, or 40%, in 2013 as compared to 2012 primarily due to the fluctuating mix of 
pre-tax earnings in the various tax jurisdictions in which we operate around the world, an accrual of $1.5 million in 2012 for a tax 
assessment in a foreign jurisdiction, and a $1.4 million valuation allowance adjustment in 2012 related to foreign subsidiary net 
operating losses. Our effective tax rates were 30% and 33% for 2013 and 2012, respectively.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources

We assess liquidity in terms of our ability to generate cash to fund operating, investing, and financing activities.  Our primary 
sources of liquidity are cash flows generated from our operations, available cash and cash equivalents, and availability under our 
revolving credit facility.  We remain in a strong financial position with resources available to reinvest in existing businesses, 
strategic acquisitions, and capital expenditures to meet short and long term objectives.  We believe that our cash position is sufficient 
to fund operations, anticipated working capital needs and other cash requirements including capital expenditures, debt, interest, 
and dividend payments, for the foreseeable future.  

Net cash is a non-GAAP measure reflecting cash and cash equivalents, net of debt. Management uses this non-GAAP measure to 
evaluate our capital structure and financial leverage. We believe net cash is a meaningful measure that will assist investor in 
understanding our results and recognizing underlying trends. Net cash should not be considered as an alternative to, or more 
meaningful than, cash and equivalents as determined in accordance with GAAP or as an indicator of our operating performance 
or liquidity.  

The following is a reconciliation of our cash and cash equivalents to net cash as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

 Years ended December 31,
 2014 2013
Cash $ 72,466 $ 97,277
Current portion of long term debt (25) (503)
Long term debt — (27)
Net cash $ 72,441 $ 96,747

The change in our net cash position was primarily due to the using cash on hand to increase working capital levels, repurchase 
stock, and pay dividends to our shareholders.

The following table summarizes our net cash provided by (used in) operating, investing, and financing activities for the three years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 as follows (in thousands);

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Cash provided by operating activities $ 40,580 $ 94,258 $ 17,723
Cash used in investing activities (39,004) (24,278) (14,197)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (26,387) 5,498 (4,416)
Increase (decreases) in cash and equivalents $ (24,811) $ 75,479 (890)

Certain sources and uses of cash, such as the level of discretionary capital expenditures and the issuance and repayment of debt, 
are within our control and are adjusted as necessary based on market conditions.  The following is a discussion of our cash flows 
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for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013and 2012. This discussion should be read in conjunction with Item 8. Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data in this report.

2014 as compared to 2013

Our cash and cash equivalents were $72.5 million at December 31, 2014, a decrease of $24.8 million, as compared to 2013. This 
is attributable to the following:

Operating Activities
Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $40.6 million, as compared to $94.3 million in 
2013. In 2014, we used available cash of $17.2 million to increase our inventory levels and $26.0 million to settle our accounts 
payable balances. In 2013, we increased our cash position by reducing inventory by $27.4 million.  In addition, our payables and 
accrued liabilities balances increased in 2013, which increased our cash balance by $9.8 million.

Investing Activities
Cash used for investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $39.0 million, as compared to $24.3 million in 2013.  
In 2014, we purchased substantially all of the assets of Tech Field Services, LLC ("TFS") for $5.0 million, while in 2013, we 
acquired certain intellectual property assets of Custom Pipe Handlers Canada Inc ("CPH") for $1.9 million. Further, we used $38.3 
million and $38.1 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively, for capital expenditures and sales of operating assets provided $4.3 
million and $9.2 million of cash, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we did not receive cash from the sale 
of the Casing Drilling segment to the Schlumberger Group, compared to $6.2 million that we received during the same period in 
2013.

Financing Activities
Cash used for financing activities was $26.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, as compared to cash provided by 
financing activities of $5.5 million in 2013. We paid $6.0 million in cash dividends in 2014. We also began our stock repurchase 
program in 2014, under which we repurchased shares valued at $27.3 million. Further, proceeds from stock options of $6.5 million 
and $5.3 million were recognized in 2014 and 2013, respectively. In 2013, we issued $9.6 million and repaid $9.4 million of debt 
during the year.

2013 as compared to 2012

Operating Activities
Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $94.3 million as compared to $17.7 million in 
2012.  The majority of the increase was due to a $51.1 million reduction in inventory levels and a $30.4 million increase in our 
accounts payable balance, among other improvements in our working capital balances.

Investing Activities
Cash used for investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $24.3 million as compared to $14.2 million in 2012.  
Although we reduced our expenditures on capital assets by almost half in 2013 as compared to the prior year, a reduction of $25.6 
million, our net cash used by financing activities increased in 2013. This was due to proceeds from the sale of substantially all of 
the assets of our casing drilling segment in 2012 of $6.2 million and $39.5 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Financing Activities
Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $5.5 million as compared to net cash used  
of $4.4 million in 2012. This fluctuation primarily consists of the issuance and repayment of debt of our revolving credit line, as 
we issue debt as needed for our working requirements. We drew down and paid back $9.4 million and $35.4 million from our 
revolving credit facility in 2013 and 2012, respectively. During 2012, we also repaid $6.3 million of debt assumed as part of the 
Premiere acquisition.  

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 3" in 
this Report.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to select appropriate 
accounting estimates and to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and 
expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  We consider our critical accounting estimates to be those that 
require difficult, complex or subjective judgment necessary in accounting for inherently uncertain matters and those that could 
significantly influence our financial results based on changes in those judgments.  Changes in facts and circumstances may result 
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in revised estimates and actual results may differ materially from those estimates.  We believe the most critical accounting policies 
in this regard are those described below.

Deferred Taxes
We record deferred tax assets and liabilities to reflect the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. By their nature, tax laws are often 
subject to interpretation. In those cases where a tax position is open to interpretation, differences of opinion can result in differing 
conclusions as to the amount of tax benefits to be recognized. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred tax assets 
when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the tax asset will not be realized. We consider estimates of future taxable 
income and ongoing tax planning in assessing the utilization of available tax losses and credits. Unforeseen events and industry 
conditions may impact forecasts of future taxable income which, in turn, can affect the carrying value of the deferred tax assets 
and liabilities and impact our future reported earnings. The level of evidence and documentation necessary to support a position 
prior to being given recognition and measurement within the financial statements is a matter of judgment that depends on all 
available evidence. A change in our forecast of future taxable income, or changes in circumstances, assumptions and clarification 
of uncertain tax regimes may require changes to any valuation allowances associated with our deferred tax assets, which could 
have a material effect on net income.

 
Loss Contingencies
We accrue loss contingency reserves when our assessments indicate that it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset 
will not be recovered and an amount can be reasonably estimated.  Estimates of our liabilities are based on an evaluation of potential 
outcomes and currently available facts.  Actual results may differ from our estimates, and our estimates can be revised in the future, 
either negatively or positively, depending upon actual outcomes or changes in expectations based on the facts surrounding each 
matter.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue when the earnings process is complete, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, price is fixed or 
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. For product sales, revenue is recognized upon delivery when title and risk 
of loss of the equipment is transferred to the customer, with no right of return. For the sale of our top drives, we determine the 
transfer of title and risk of loss in accordance with contracts with our customers and the related International Commercial Terms. 
Revenue in the Top Drive segment may be generated from contractual arrangements that include multiple deliverables. Revenue 
from these arrangements is recognized as each item or service is delivered based on their relative fair value and when the delivered 
items or services have stand-alone value to the customer. For revenue other than product sales, we recognize revenue as the services 
are rendered based upon agreed daily, hourly or job rates.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable trade consist of amounts due to us arising from normal course of business activities measured at net realizable 
value. This value includes an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts to reflect any loss expected on the accounts receivable 
trade balances and charged to the provision for doubtful accounts.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable
The determination of the collectability of amounts due from customer accounts requires the Company to make judgments regarding 
future events and trends. Allowances for doubtful accounts are determined based on a continuous process of assessing the 
Company’s portfolio on an individual customer basis taking into account current market conditions and trends. This process 
consists of a thorough review of historical collection experience, current aging status of the customer accounts, and financial 
condition of the Company’s customers. Based on a review of these factors, the Company will establish or adjust allowances for 
specific customers. A substantial portion of the Company’s revenues come from international oil companies, international oilfield 
service companies, and government-owned or government-controlled oil companies. Therefore, the Company has significant 
receivables in many foreign jurisdictions. If worldwide oil and gas drilling activity or changes in economic conditions in foreign 
jurisdictions deteriorate, the creditworthiness of the Company’s customers could also deteriorate and they may be unable to pay 
these receivables, and additional allowances could be required. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, allowance for doubtful accounts 
totaled $5.8 million and $3.0 million, or 4.3% and 2.1% of gross accounts receivable, respectively. Historically, the Company’s 
charge-offs and provisions for the allowance for doubtful accounts have been immaterial to the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. However, because of the risk factors mentioned above, changes in estimates could become material in future periods.

Purchase Price Allocation of Acquisitions
The Company allocates the purchase price of an acquired business to its identifiable assets and liabilities based on estimated fair 
values. The excess of the purchase price over the amount allocated to the assets and liabilities, if any, is recorded as goodwill. The 
Company uses all available information to estimate fair values including quoted market prices, the carrying value of acquired 
assets, and widely accepted valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows. The Company engages third-party appraisal firms 
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to assist in fair value determination of inventories, identifiable intangible assets, and any other significant assets or liabilities when 
appropriate. The judgments made in determining the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed, as well as asset lives, could materially impact the Company’s results of operations.

Service and Product Warranties
The Company provides service and warranty policies on certain of its products. The Company accrues liabilities under service 
and warranty policies based upon specific claims and a review of historical warranty and service claim experience in accordance 
with ASC Topic 450 "Contingencies" ("ASC Topic 450").  Adjustments are made to accruals as claim data and historical experience 
change. In addition, the Company incurs discretionary costs to service its products in connection with product performance issues 
and recognizes them when they are incurred.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, service and product warranties totaled $3.4 
million and $2.4 million, respectively.

Excess and Obsolete Inventory Provisions
Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. The Company determines reserves for inventory based 
on historical usage of inventory on-hand, assumptions about future demand and market conditions, and estimates about potential 
alternative uses, which are usually limited. The Company’s inventory consists of specialized spare parts, work in process, and raw 
materials to support ongoing assembly operations. Customers rely on the Company to stock these specialized items to ensure that 
their equipment can be repaired and serviced in a timely manner. The Company’s estimated carrying value of inventory therefore 
depends upon demand driven by oil and gas drilling and well remediation activity, which depends in turn upon oil and gas prices, 
the general outlook for economic growth worldwide, available financing for the Company’s customers, political stability in major 
oil and gas producing areas, and the potential obsolescence of various types of equipment we sell, among other factors. As of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, inventory reserves totaled $2.7 million and $2.1 million, or 2.3% and 2.1% of gross inventory, 
respectively.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets, which include goodwill, property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets, comprise a substantial portion 
of our assets. The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis and the carrying value of other long-
lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 
not be recoverable.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, we test goodwill on a reporting unit basis for impairment using a 
fair value approach using both the (1) income approach and (2) market approach.  We perform the valuation to test goodwill 
impairment annually as of December 31 or upon the occurrence of a triggering event. Goodwill impairment exists when the 
estimated fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying value. We estimate the fair value of goodwill based on discounted cash 
flow method (the income approach) and guideline comparable company method (market approach). The income approach is 
dependent on a number of significant management assumptions including markets and market share, sales volumes and prices, 
costs to produce, capital spending, working capital changes, terminal value multiples and the discount rate. The discount rate is 
commensurate with the risk inherent in the projected cash flows and reflects the rate of return required by an investor in the current 
economic conditions. During times of economic volatility, significant judgment must be applied to determine our weighted-average 
cost of capital that we use to determine the discount rate.  The market approach is based on a list of public peer companies and its 
performance metrics as applied to each reporting unit.  The market approach assumes that the peer companies operate in the same 
industry and share similar characteristics to us and that our values will correlate to those characteristics. Therefore, a comparison 
of our reporting units to similar peer companies whose financial information is publicly available may provide a reasonable basis 
to estimate our fair value of each reporting unit.  Once the valuation based on each methodology is completed, the company's 
management will consider the weighting of the market approach vs. the income approach and the percentages associated with 
each approach are tested for reasonableness.  If actual results are not consistent with our assumptions and judgments used in 
estimating future cash flows and asset fair values, we may be exposed to goodwill impairment losses that could be material to our 
results of operations.

When evaluating long-lived assets other than goodwill (such as property, plant and equipment) for potential impairment, we first 
compare the carrying value of the asset to the asset’s estimated, future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges). 
If the estimated future cash flows are less than the carrying value of the asset, we calculate and recognize an impairment loss.  This 
process requires management to apply judgment in estimating future cash flows and asset fair values, including forecasting useful 
lives of the assets held and used, estimating future operating activities, future business conditions or technological developments.   If 
actual results are not consistent with our assumptions and judgments used in estimating future cash flows and asset fair values or 
if we encounter significant, unanticipated changes in circumstances, we may be required to lower the carrying value of our long-
lived assets by recording an impairment charge that could be material to our results of operations.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 3", under the heading "Recent accounting pronouncements" 
included in this Report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements other than the contractual obligations and letters of credit 
noted below.

Contractual Obligations
 
We are party to various contractual obligations.  A portion of these obligations are reflected in our financial statements, such as 
long term debt, while other obligations, such as operating leases and purchase obligations, are not reflected on our balance sheet.  The 
following is a summary of our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

 Payments due by period

 Total
Less than 1

year 1-3 years 3-5 years
More than 5

years
Long term debt obligations      

Principal $ 25 $ 25 $ — $ — $ —
Interest — — — — —

Operating lease obligations (a) 28,835 6,980 9,751 5,311 6,793
Purchase commitments (b) 23,205 23,205 — — —
 $ 52,065 $ 30,210 $ 9,751 $ 5,311 $ 6,793

(a) We have operating lease commitments expiring at various dates, principally administrative offices, operation facilities and 
equipment.

(b) Represents purchase commitments for executed purchase orders that have been submitted to the respective vendor.

Letters of Credit
 
We enter into letters of credit in the ordinary course of business.  The availability of current borrowings is, and future borrowings 
may be, limited in order to maintain certain financial ratios required by restrictive covenants in our credit facility.  As of 
December 31, 2014, we had outstanding letters of credit of approximately $8.3 million, of which $3.8 million is outstanding under 
our revolving credit facility with an available credit line of $121.2 million.  We were in compliance with all related covenants as 
of December 31, 2014.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risks in our normal business activities.  Market risk is the potential loss that may result from market 
changes associated with an existing or forecasted financial transaction.  The types of market risks we are exposed to are credit 
risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

Credit Risk
Our financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and 
accounts receivable.  Cash equivalents, such as deposits, investments in short-term commercial paper and other money market 
instruments, are held by major banks.  Our accounts receivable are principally with oil and natural gas service, exploration and 
production companies and are subject to normal industry credit risks.  For a further discussion, see Part II, Item 8, "Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 16" included in this Report.

Interest Rate Risk
At December 31, 2014, our debt consisted of capital leases assumed in our acquisition of Premiere and various short-term notes 
payable.  At year end, we had no outstanding debt related to our credit facility, but we have had significant debt borrowings in the 
past and currently have the ability to borrow up to $121.2 million under our existing revolving credit facility, subject to the 
maintenance of certain financial ratios required by restrictive covenants.  Our credit facility has a variable interest rate, which 
exposes us to interest rate risk.  From time to time, we may use derivative financial instruments to manage our interest rate 
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exposures. Exposures arising from changes in prevailing levels of interest rates relative to the contractual rates on our debt may 
be managed by entering into interest rate swap agreements when it is deemed appropriate. We were not party to any interest rate 
swaps during the year ended December 31, 2014.

The carrying value of cash, investments in short-term commercial paper, and other money market instruments, accounts receivable, 
accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value due to the relatively short-term period to maturity of the 
instruments.  The fair value of our long-term debt depends primarily on current market interest rates for debt issued with similar 
maturities by companies with risk profiles similar to us.  

Foreign Currency Risk
We have extensive operations in foreign countries. On a global basis, our functional currency is the US dollar, which is consistent 
with much of the oil and gas industry.  In addition, our operations have net assets and liabilities not denominated in the functional 
currency, which exposes us to changes in foreign currency exchange rates that impact income.  Over 75% of our revenue in 2014 
was denominated in US dollars. However, outside the United States, a significant portion of our expenses are incurred in foreign 
currencies. Therefore, weakening of currencies against the U.S. dollar may create losses in future periods. Conversely, when local 
currencies strengthen in relation to the U.S. dollar we experience foreign exchange gains. During the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013, and 2012, the Company reported foreign currency losses of $7.1 million, $5.3 million, and $2.7 million, respectively.



32

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TESCO CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

 

  
 Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (EY)
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PwC)
Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Schedule II—Valuation and qualifying accounts

33
34
35
36
37
38
39
83



33

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tesco Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Tesco Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014, 
and the related consolidated statement of income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014. Our 
audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are 
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and 
schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position 
of Tesco Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows 
for the year ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, 
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents 
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Tesco 
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) 
and our report dated March 31, 2015, expressed an adverse opinion thereon.

/s/Ernst and Young LLP 
Houston, Texas
March 31, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tesco Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 and the related consolidated statements of income, 
shareholders’ equity and of cash flows for each of two years in the period ended December 31, 2013 present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Tesco Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2013, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule for each of the 
two years in the period ended December 31, 2013 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when 
read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.   These financial statements and financial statement schedule 
are the responsibility of the Company's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
and financial statement schedule based on our audits.  We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Houston, Texas
March 4, 2014, except for Note 2, as to which the date is March 31, 2015
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands)

 December 31,
 2014 2013

Assets  
Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,466 $ 97,277
Accounts receivable trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,814 and $3,006
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively 128,663 141,200
Inventories, net 114,682 96,874
Income taxes recoverable 9,140 7,210
Deferred income taxes 8,864 6,136
Prepaid and other current assets 26,874 29,519

Total current assets 360,689 378,216
Property, plant and equipment, net 202,505 204,456
Goodwill 34,401 32,732
Deferred income taxes 13,971 12,174
Intangible and other assets, net 7,700 7,097

Total assets $ 619,266 $ 634,675
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   

Current liabilities   
Current portion of long term debt $ 25 $ 503
Accounts payable 36,053 45,213
Deferred revenue 16,566 21,288
Warranty reserves 3,370 2,389
Income taxes payable 8,907 4,797
Accrued and other current liabilities 26,781 36,612

Total current liabilities 91,702 110,802
Long term debt — 27
Other liabilities 2,144 990
Deferred income taxes 12,293 9,494

Total liabilities 106,139 121,313
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) — —
Shareholders’ equity   
First preferred shares; no par value; unlimited shares authorized; none issued and outstanding 
at December 31, 2014 or 2013

— —

Second preferred shares; no par value; unlimited shares authorized; none issued and outstanding 
at December 31, 2014 or 2013

— —

Common shares; no par value; unlimited shares authorized; 38,949 and 39,680 shares issued 
and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively 208,999 224,666
Retained earnings 268,627 253,195
Accumulated other comprehensive income 35,501 35,501

Total shareholders’ equity 513,127 513,362
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 619,266 $ 634,675

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 For the years ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Revenue

Products $ 230,717 $ 202,529 $ 238,342
Services 312,274 322,336 314,811

 542,991 524,865 553,153
Operating expenses    

Cost of sales and services    
Products 177,135 157,514 175,961
Services 256,503 255,877 257,360

 433,638 413,391 433,321
Selling, general and administrative 53,236 49,490 44,561
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling — (1,434) (12,353)
Research and engineering 9,574 8,578 10,457

Total operating expenses 496,448 470,025 475,986
Operating income 46,543 54,840 77,167
Other expense    

Interest expense 1,193 1,001 1,219
Interest income (204) (170) (195)
Foreign exchange losses 7,140 5,270 2,749
Other income (30) (1,547) (1,968)

Total other expense 8,099 4,554 1,805
Income before income taxes 38,444 50,286 75,362
Income tax provision 17,008 15,002 25,185
Net income $ 21,436 $ 35,284 $ 50,177
Earnings per share:    

Basic $ 0.54 $ 0.90 $ 1.30
Diluted $ 0.53 $ 0.89 $ 1.28

Dividends per share:
Basic $ 0.15 $ — $ —

Weighted average number of shares:   
Basic 39,912 39,090 38,688
Diluted 40,517 39,760 39,102

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(in thousands)

 

Common
stock
shares

Common
shares

Retained
earnings

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income Total

Balances at December 31, 2011 38,569 $ 206,573 $ 170,733 $ 35,501 $ 412,807
Cumulative Impact of Revision (Note 2) (2,999) (2,999)
Balances at December 31, 2011 38,569 206,573 167,734 35,501 409,808
Net income — — 50,177 — 50,177
Issuance and exercises under stock plans 359 6,887 — — 6,887

Balances at December 31, 2012 38,928 213,460 217,911 35,501 466,872
Net income — — 35,284 — 35,284
Issuance and exercises under stock plans 752 11,206 — — 11,206

Balances at December 31, 2013 39,680 224,666 253,195 35,501 513,362
Net income — — 21,436 — 21,436
Dividend distribution — — (6,004) — (6,004)
Shares repurchased and cancelled (1,635) (27,324) — — (27,324)
Issuance and exercises under stock plans 904 11,657 — — 11,657

Balances at December 31, 2014 38,949 $ 208,999 $ 268,627 $ 35,501 $ 513,127

 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands) 

 For the years ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012

Operating Activities
Net income $ 21,436 $ 35,284 $ 50,177
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities    

Depreciation and amortization 42,009 41,221 43,010
Stock compensation expense 4,744 5,940 4,992
Bad debt expense 4,771 430 1,574
Deferred income taxes (3,479) (1,734) 5,290
Amortization of financial items 304 305 279
Gain on sale of operating assets (1,026) (8,866) (22,542)
Changes in the fair value of contingent earn-out obligations (368) — —
Venezuela charges 3,256 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Accounts receivable trade, net 6,133 (9,682) (20,880)
Inventories (17,160) 27,400 (23,691)
Prepaid and other current assets 2,602 1,950 (2,649)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (26,017) 9,841 (20,513)
Income taxes payable (recoverable) 1,974 (6,500) 4,517
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net 1,401 (1,331) (1,841)

Net cash provided by operating activities 40,580 94,258 17,723
Investing Activities    
Additions to property, plant and equipment (38,308) (38,065) (63,662)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (5,000) (1,914) —
Proceeds on sale of operating assets 4,260 9,171 10,401
Proceeds on sale of Casing Drilling, net of transaction costs — 6,164 39,530
Other, net 44 366 (466)

Net cash used in investing activities (39,004) (24,278) (14,197)
Financing Activities    
Issuances of debt — 9,566 35,400
Repayments of debt (387) (9,415) (41,764)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 6,450 5,347 1,369
Dividend distribution (6,004) — —
Share repurchase program (27,324) — —
Excess tax benefit associated with equity based compensation 878 — 579

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (26,387) 5,498 (4,416)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (24,811) 75,479 (890)
Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 97,277 21,798 22,688
Net cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 72,466 $ 97,277 $ 21,798
Supplemental cash flow information    
Cash payments for interest $ 462 $ 532 $ 632
Cash payments for income taxes 21,272 25,291 16,628
Cash received for income tax refunds 1,438 1,371 1,222
Property, plant and equipment accrued in accounts payable 3,343 617 1,181

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TESCO CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

 

Note 1— Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Nature of operations

We are a global leader in the design, assembly, and service delivery of technology-based solutions for the upstream energy 
industry.  We seek to change the way wells are drilled by delivering safer and more efficient solutions that add real value by 
reducing the costs of drilling for and producing oil and natural gas.  Our product and service offerings consist mainly of equipment 
sales and services to drilling contractors and oil and natural gas operating companies throughout the world.

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP") and include the accounts of all consolidated subsidiaries after the elimination of all 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions.

Unless indicated otherwise, all amounts in these consolidated financial statements are denominated in United States ("U.S.") 
dollars.  All references to US$ or $ are to U.S. dollars and references to C$ are to Canadian dollars.

Subsequent Events

We conducted our subsequent events review through the date these consolidated financial statements were filed with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

Note 2—Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements
 
As of December 31, 2014, we identified several prior period pre-tax misstatements, aggregating approximately $4.0 million. We 
identified a net $1.7 million million pre-tax misstatement in prior periods related to our accounting for foreign exchange 
revaluations, depreciation expense and cost of goods sold due to a system configuration issue in certain of our foreign country 
ledgers. The foreign exchange revaluation misstatement correction of approximately $1.0 million has no associated tax benefit. 
We also identified an unsupported accrued payable of $0.8 million, a previously identified VAT receivable that was incorrectly 
recorded prior to 2012 for $1.2 million, and an additional inaccurate VAT receivable balance of $0.4 million.  In addition, we had 
other misstatements that aggregated to $1.5 million of expense. We also identified misstatements related to previously unrecorded 
uncertain tax provisions of $0.7 million.  The impact of the misstatements in the prior years’ financial statements was not material 
to any of those years, however the cumulative effect of correcting all of the prior period misstatements in the current year would 
be material to our current year consolidated financial statements.

In evaluating whether the previously issued financial statements were materially misstated, the Company has applied SEC Staff 
Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in 
Current Year Financial Statements.  SAB No. 108 states that registrants must quantify the impact of correcting all misstatements, 
including both the carryover (iron curtain method) and reversing (rollover method) effects of prior-year misstatements on the 
current-year financial statements, and by evaluating the misstatement measured under each method in light of quantitative and 
qualitative factors.

Under SAB No. 108, prior-year misstatements which, if corrected in the current year would be material to the current year, must 
be corrected by adjusting prior year financial statements, even though such correction previously was and continues to be immaterial 
to the prior-year financial statements. Correcting prior-year financial statements for such “immaterial misstatements” does not 
require previously filed reports to be amended. In accordance with accounting guidance presented in ASC 250-10 (SEC Staff 
Accounting Bulletin No. 99, Materiality), the Company assessed the materiality of the misstatements and concluded that they 
were not material to any of the Company’s previously issued financial statements. 

Due to the immaterial nature of the misstatement corrections, the cumulative adjustments required to correct the misstatements 
in the financial statements prior to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 are reflected in the revised stockholders’ equity as of 
December 31, 2011.  The cumulative effect of those adjustments reduced previously reported retained earnings by $3.0 million.  
These adjustments also cumulatively impacted the following balance sheet line items as of December 31, 2013:
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands)

 As of December 31, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Assets   
Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 97,277 $ — $ 97,277
Accounts receivable trade, net 142,584 (1,384) 141,200
Inventories, net 97,363 (489) 96,874
Income taxes recoverable 7,343 (133) 7,210
Deferred income taxes 6,483 (347) 6,136
Prepaid and other current assets 30,388 (869) 29,519

Total current assets 381,438 (3,222) 378,216
Property, plant and equipment, net 204,908 (452) 204,456
Goodwill 32,732 — 32,732
Deferred income taxes 11,823 351 12,174
Intangible and other assets, net 6,778 319 7,097

Total assets $ 637,679 $ (3,004) $ 634,675
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   

Current liabilities   
Current portion of long term debt $ 385 $ 118 $ 503
Accounts payable 45,566 (353) 45,213
Deferred revenue 21,289 (1) 21,288
Warranty reserves 2,393 (4) 2,389
Income taxes payable 5,863 (1,066) 4,797
Accrued and other current liabilities 35,489 1,123 36,612

Total current liabilities 110,985 (183) 110,802
Long term debt 27 — 27
Other liabilities 199 791 990
Deferred income taxes 9,494 — 9,494

Total liabilities 120,705 608 121,313
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) — — —
Shareholders’ equity   
First preferred shares; no par value — — —
Second preferred shares; no par value — — —
Common shares; no par value 224,666 — 224,666
Retained earnings 256,807 (3,612) 253,195
Accumulated other comprehensive income 35,501 — 35,501

Total shareholders’ equity 516,974 (3,612) 513,362
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 637,679 $ (3,004) $ 634,675
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The errors discussed above, adjusted for the related income tax expense impact, resulted in an overstatement of net income of 
$1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 and an understatement of net earnings of $0.4 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, respectively.

TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 For the year ended December 31, 2012
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised
Revenue    

Products $ 238,459 $ (117) $ 238,342
Services 314,680 131 314,811

 553,139 14 553,153
Operating expenses    

Cost of sales and services    
Products 175,851 110 175,961
Services 257,561 (201) 257,360

 433,412 (91) 433,321
Selling, general and administrative 44,828 (267) 44,561
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling (12,353) — (12,353)
Research and engineering 10,457 — 10,457

Total operating expenses 476,344 (358) 475,986
Operating income 76,795 372 77,167
Other expense    

Interest expense 1,204 15 1,219
Interest income (104) (91) (195)
Foreign exchange losses 3,083 (334) 2,749
Other income (1,983) 15 (1,968)

Total other expense 2,200 (395) 1,805
Income before income taxes 74,595 767 75,362
Income tax provision 24,781 404 25,185
Net income $ 49,814 $ 363 $ 50,177
Earnings per share:    

Basic $ 1.29 $ 0.01 $ 1.30
Diluted $ 1.27 $ 0.01 $ 1.28

Weighted average number of shares:   
Basic 38,688 38,688 38,688
Diluted 39,102 39,102 39,102
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 For the year ended December 31, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised
Revenue    

Products $ 202,529 $ — $ 202,529
Services 322,724 (388) 322,336

 525,253 (388) 524,865
Operating expenses    

Cost of sales and services    
Products 157,518 (4) 157,514
Services 255,485 392 255,877

 413,003 388 413,391
Selling, general and administrative 49,490 — 49,490
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling (1,434) — (1,434)
Research and engineering 8,578 — 8,578

Total operating expenses 469,637 388 470,025
Operating income 55,616 (776) 54,840
Other expense    

Interest expense 713 288 1,001
Interest income (49) (121) (170)
Foreign exchange losses 4,835 435 5,270
Other income (1,547) — (1,547)

Total other expense 3,952 602 4,554
Income before income taxes 51,664 (1,378) 50,286
Income tax provision 15,404 (402) 15,002
Net income $ 36,260 $ (976) $ 35,284
Earnings per share:    

Basic $ 0.93 $ (0.02) $ 0.90
Diluted $ 0.91 $ (0.02) $ 0.89

Weighted average number of shares:    
Basic 39,090 39,090 39,090
Diluted 39,760 39,760 39,760
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The errors discussed above also resulted in changes to previously reported amounts in our consolidated statements of cash flows.  
The previously reported changes in operating assets and liabilities in the reconciliation of net income to cash provided by operating 
activities have been revised as detailed in the tables below.

TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

 For the year ended December 31, 2012
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Operating Activities    
Net income $ 49,814 $ 363 $ 50,177

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 42,989 21 43,010
Stock compensation expense 4,992 — 4,992
Bad debt expense 1,574 — 1,574
Deferred income taxes 5,290 — 5,290
Amortization of financial items 279 — 279
Gain on sale of operating assets (22,542) — (22,542)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable trade, net (20,788) (92) (20,880)
Inventories (23,466) (225) (23,691)
Prepaid and other current assets (2,661) 12 (2,649)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (20,724) 211 (20,513)
Income taxes payable (recoverable) 4,643 (126) 4,517
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net (1,842) 1 (1,841)

Net cash provided by operating activities 17,558 165 17,723
Investing Activities    
Additions to property, plant and equipment (63,662) — (63,662)
Proceeds on sale of operating assets 10,401 — 10,401
Proceeds on sale of Casing Drilling, net of transaction costs 39,530 — 39,530
Other, net (466) — (466)

Net cash used in investing activities (14,197) — (14,197)
Financing Activities    
Issuances of debt 35,400 — 35,400
Repayments of debt (41,764) — (41,764)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,369 — 1,369
Excess tax benefit associated with equity based compensation 579 — 579

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (4,416) — (4,416)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (1,055) 165 (890)
Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 23,069 (381) 22,688
Net cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 22,014 $ (216) $ 21,798
Supplemental cash flow information    
Cash payments for interest $ 632 $ — $ 632
Cash payments for income taxes 16,628 — 16,628
Cash received for income tax refunds 1,222 — 1,222
Property, plant and equipment accrued in accounts payable 1,181 — 1,181
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

 For the year ended December 31, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Operating Activities    
Net income $ 36,260 $ (976) $ 35,284

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 40,778 443 41,221
Stock compensation expense 5,940 — 5,940
Bad debt expense 430 — 430
Deferred income taxes (1,734) — (1,734)
Amortization of financial items 305 — 305
Gain on sale of operating assets (8,866) — (8,866)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable trade, net (11,056) 1,374 (9,682)
Inventories 27,033 367 27,400
Prepaid and other current assets 2,760 (810) 1,950
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,276 (435) 9,841
Income taxes payable (recoverable) (6,145) (355) (6,500)
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net (1,939) 608 (1,331)

Net cash provided by operating activities 94,042 216 94,258
Investing Activities    
Additions to property, plant and equipment (38,065) — (38,065)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (1,914) — (1,914)
Proceeds on sale of operating assets 9,171 — 9,171
Proceeds on sale of Casing Drilling, net of transaction costs 6,164 — 6,164
Other, net 366 — 366

Net cash used in investing activities (24,278) — (24,278)
Financing Activities    
Issuances of debt 9,566 — 9,566
Repayments of debt (9,415) — (9,415)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 5,347 — 5,347
Excess tax benefit associated with equity based compensation — — —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,498 — 5,498
Change in cash and cash equivalents 75,263 216 75,479
Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 22,014 (216) 21,798
Net cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 97,277 $ — $ 97,277
Supplemental cash flow information    
Cash payments for interest $ 532 $ — $ 532
Cash payments for income taxes 25,291 — 25,291
Cash received for income tax refunds 1,371 — 1,371
Property, plant and equipment accrued in accounts payable 617 — 617
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Note 3— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.  On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our 
estimates, including those related to reserves for excess and obsolete inventory, uncollectible accounts receivable, valuation of 
goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets, determination of income taxes, contingent liabilities, self-insurance liabilities, 
stock-based compensation and warranty provisions.  We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions 
that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying 
value of our assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid, short-term investments with original maturities of less than three months, which are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash.  At both December 31, 2014 and 2013, cash and cash equivalents consisted entirely of 
bank balances.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based on our assessment of specific outstanding accounts that are 
probable of loss.  Uncollectible accounts receivable are written off when a settlement is reached for an amount less than the 
outstanding historical balance or when we determine the balance will not be collected.
 
Inventories and inventory reserves

Inventories consist primarily of top drives and tubular services parts, spare parts, work in process and raw materials to support 
ongoing manufacturing operations and the installed base of specialized equipment used throughout the world.  We have several 
valuation methods for our various types of inventories and consistently use the following methods for each type of inventory:

• We value our work in process manufactured equipment using standard costs, which approximate actual costs for raw 
materials, direct labor and appropriate manufacturing overhead allocations;

• We value our finished manufactured equipment at the lower of cost or market using specific identification; and

• We value our spare parts at the lower of cost or market using the average cost method.

Research and engineering expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses are reported as period costs and excluded 
from inventory cost.  We establish reserves for obsolete inventory and for inventory in excess of demand based on our usage of 
inventory on-hand, technical obsolescence and market conditions, as well as our expectations of future demand based on our 
manufacturing sales backlog, our installed base and our development of new products.

Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost.  Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.  The costs of replacements, 
betterments, and renewals are capitalized.  When properties and equipment, other than top drive units in our rental fleet, are sold, 
retired, or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the books and the resulting gain 
or loss is recognized on our consolidated statement of income.  When top drive units in our rental fleet are sold, the sales proceeds 
are included in revenue and the net book value of the equipment sold is included in cost of sales and services on our consolidated 
statement of income. Proceeds from the sale of these top drives are included in proceeds from the sale of operating assets and the 
difference between revenues and the cost of sales and services is included in gain on sale of operating assets in our consolidated 
statements of cash flows.

Property, plant, and equipment used in operations are assessed for impairment whenever changes in facts and circumstances 
indicate a possible significant deterioration in the future cash flows expected to be generated by an asset group.  The individual 
long-lived assets are grouped for impairment purposes on a consolidation basis as we have the ability to move most of our assets 
around the world to where strategically most suitable for the Company.  The company determined that the appropriate level to 
group its assets for impairment purposes is (1) Top Drive assets and (2) Tubular Services assets. If, upon review, the sum of the 
undiscounted pretax cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset group, the carrying value is written down to estimated 
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fair value and reported as an impairment charge in the period in which the determination of the impairment is made.  Because 
there usually is a lack of quoted market prices for long-lived assets, the fair value of impaired assets is typically determined based 
on the present values of expected future cash flows using discount rates believed to be consistent with those used by principal 
market participants.  Long-lived assets committed by management for disposal within one year are accounted for at the lower of 
amortized cost or fair value, less cost to sell, with fair value determined using a binding negotiated price, if available, or the present 
value of expected future cash flows as previously described. See Note 16 for discussion of the fourth quarter 2014 charges of 
property and equipment in our Venezuela operations.

Depreciation and amortization of property, plant, and equipment, including intangible assets and capital leases, is computed on 
the following basis:
 

Asset Category  Description  Method  Life 
Land, buildings, and leaseholds  Buildings

Leasehold improvements
 Straight-line

Straight-line
 20 years

Lease term

Drilling equipment  Top drive rental units
Tubular services equipment
Support equipment

 Usage
Straight-line
Straight-line

 2,600 days
5 – 7 years
5 – 7 years

Manufacturing equipment     Straight-line   5 – 7 years

Office equipment and other  Computer hardware and software
IT development costs
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles

 Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line

 2 – 5 years
5 years
5 years
3 – 4 years

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill, resulting from business combinations, is initially recorded at acquisition-date fair value.  Goodwill is not amortized but 
is subject to an annual impairment test, which we perform in the fourth quarter of each year, or upon the occurrence of a triggering 
event.  An impairment loss is recognized when the fair value of our goodwill is less than the carrying amount of that goodwill. 
We perform our goodwill impairment tests at the reporting unit level using the discounted cash flow method.  We have $32.7 
million and $1.7 million of goodwill assigned to our Tubular Services and Top Drive reporting units, respectively.  The goodwill 
assigned to Top Drive reporting unit is a result of our 2014 acquisition of Tech Field Services Inc.  For the years ending December 31, 
2013 and 2012, all of our goodwill was assigned to Tubular Services reporting unit.

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, management concluded that goodwill was not impaired.

Intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test or the occurrence 
of a triggering event.  Indefinite lived intangibles are considered impaired if the fair values of the intangible assets are lower than 
their net book values.  The fair value of intangible assets is determined based on quoted market prices in active markets, if available, 
or the discounted cash flow method or estimated replacement cost, if quoted market prices are not available.  We had no indefinite 
lived intangibles, other than goodwill, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

 
Intangible assets that have finite useful lives are capitalized at their acquisition-date fair value and amortized on a straight-line 
basis over their estimated useful lives.  Our intangible assets that have finite useful lives consist primarily of customer relationships, 
patents and non-compete agreements.  We review our intangible assets for impairment when circumstances indicate their carrying 
values may not be recoverable as measured by the amount their carrying values are exceeded by their fair values.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined using the liability method and are provided on all temporary differences between the financial 
reporting basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities, except for deferred taxes on income considered to be permanently 
reinvested in certain foreign subsidiaries.  Deferred income taxes are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply 
to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.  The effect of a change in tax rates 
applied to deferred income taxes is recognized in the period that the change is enacted. A valuation allowance is established to 
reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be 
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realized.  Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are reflected in interest expense and other expense, 
respectively, on our consolidated statements of income.

Contingent liabilities

We recognize liabilities for loss contingencies, including legal costs expected to be incurred in connection with such loss 
contingencies, when we believe a loss is probable and the amount of the probable loss can be reasonably estimated.  Such estimates 
may be based on advice from third parties or on management’s judgment, as appropriate.  Revisions to our contingent liabilities 
are reflected in income in the period in which facts become known or circumstances change that affect our previous judgments 
with respect to the likelihood or amount of the probable loss.

Warranties

We provide product warranties on equipment sold pursuant to manufacturing contracts and recognize the anticipated cost of these 
warranties in cost of sales and services when sales revenue is recognized.  We estimate our warranty liability based upon historical 
warranty claim experience and specific warranty claims.  We periodically review our warranty provision and make adjustments 
to the provision as claim data and historical experience change.

Per share information

Basic earnings (loss) per share of common stock is calculated using the weighted average number of our shares outstanding during 
the year.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share of common stock is calculated using the treasury stock method, under which we  assume proceeds 
obtained upon exercise of "in the money" share-based payments, granted under our compensation plan, would be used to purchase 
our common shares at the average market price during the period.  Diluted earnings (loss) per share includes the shares used in 
the basic net income calculation, plus our unvested restricted shares and outstanding stock options, to the extent that these 
instruments dilute earnings (loss) per share.  No adjustment to basic earnings (loss) per share is made if the result of the diluted 
earnings (loss) per share calculation is anti-dilutive.

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue when the earnings process is complete, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, price is fixed or 
determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. For product sales, revenue is recognized upon delivery when title and risk 
of loss of the equipment is transferred to the customer, with no right of return. For revenue other than product sales, we recognize 
revenue as the services are rendered based upon agreed daily, hourly or job rates.

Top Drive Sales - We determine the transfer of title and risk of loss in accordance with contracts with our customers and the related 
International Commercial Terms. Revenue in the Top Drive segment may be generated from contractual arrangements that include 
multiple deliverables. Revenue from these arrangements is recognized as each item or service is delivered based on their relative 
fair value and when the delivered items or services have stand-alone value to the customer. We generally require customers to pay 
a non-refundable deposit with their purchase orders. Customer advances or deposits are deferred and recognized as revenue when 
we have completed all of our performance obligations related to the sale.

Top Drive Rentals, Tubular Services, and Casing Drilling - Revenue generated from specific time, materials and equipment 
contracts is based upon agreed daily, hourly or job rates and price, and recognized as amounts are earned in accordance with the 
contract terms.  Under these contracts, we may receive revenue and incur incremental costs directly related to the mobilization of 
equipment and personnel to the contracted site.  Revenue earned and costs incurred directly related to mobilization are deferred 
and recognized over the estimated contract service period on a straight-line basis, which is consistent with the general pace of 
activity, level of services being provided and day rates being earned over the service period of the contract.  Mobilization costs to 
relocate equipment when a contract does not exist are expensed as incurred.  Demobilization fees received are recognized, along 
with any related expenses, upon completion of contracts. Revenue generated from materials and equipment sales is recognized 
upon delivery in accordance with the contract terms.

Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are recognized in net revenue.  Shipping and handling costs are included in cost 
of sales and services.

Operating leases
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We have entered into non-cancelable operating lease agreements primarily involving office space.  Certain of these leases contain 
escalating lease payments and we recognize expense on a straight-line basis, which is more representative of the time pattern in 
which the leased property is physically employed.  In certain instances, we are also entitled to reimbursements for part or all of 
leasehold improvements made and record a deferred credit for such reimbursements, which is amortized over the remaining life 
of the lease term as a reduction in lease expense.

Research and engineering expenses

We expense research and engineering costs when incurred.  Payments received from third parties, including payments for the use 
of equipment prototypes, during the research or development process are recognized as a reduction in research and engineering 
expense when the payments are received.  We include in research and engineering expense, costs for buildings and properties, 
salaries and employee benefits, materials and equipment, administrative activities and allocations of corporate costs.

Stock-based compensation

Our stock-based compensation plan provides for the grants of stock options, restricted stock and other stock-based awards to 
eligible directors, officers, employees and other persons.  We measure stock-based compensation cost for awards as of grant date, 
based on the estimated fair value of the award less an estimated rate for pre-vesting forfeitures.  For stock option grants, we use 
a Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the estimated fair value.  For restricted stock, the fair value is the average of the 
high and low price of our stock as traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market on the date of grant.

For equity-classified awards, we recognize compensation expense on a graded basis over the vesting period with estimated pre-
vesting forfeitures being adjusted to actual forfeitures in the month of forfeiture and actual vestings in the month of vesting.  The 
graded basis of amortization accelerates the recognition of compensation expense for a three year vesting period, with generally 
61% being recognized in the first year, 28% being recognized in the second year and 11% being recognized in the third year.  
Compensation expense for our equity-classified awards is recorded as an increase to common shares.  Consideration received on 
the exercise of stock options is recorded as an increase to common shares.  For liability-classified awards, we recognize 
compensation expense based on the fair value of the award for the portion of the service period fulfilled at the end of each reporting 
period.  The liability is recorded in accrued and other current liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet with the corresponding 
increase or decrease to compensation expense.

The tax benefit for stock-based compensation is included as a cash inflow from financing activities in the Consolidated Statements 
of Cash Flows. In accordance with ASC 718, we recognize a tax benefit only to the extent it reduces our income taxes payable. 
 For purposes of determining the amount of tax attributes utilized in a given year as compared to the deduction for stock-based 
compensation, we apply the with-and-without approach.  This approach considers deductions for stock-based compensation to be 
the last item of tax benefit recognized after all other deductions and utilization of prior year carryforwards.

 
Foreign currency translation

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all of our worldwide operations.  Our cumulative translation adjustment of $35.5 
million included in accumulated comprehensive income was resulted from the translation of assets and liabilities of our Canadian 
operations, which used the Canadian dollar as the functional currency prior to January 1, 2010.  This cumulative translation 
adjustment will be adjusted only in the event of a full or partial disposition of our investment in Canada.  

Recent accounting pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-08, 
Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued 
Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity, that raises the threshold for disposals to qualify as discontinued 
operations to include only those disposals of components of an entity that represent a strategic shift that has (or will have) a major 
effect on an entity’s operations and financial results. The amendments in this accounting standard update should be applied 
prospectively and are effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after December 15, 
2014. Early adoption is permitted for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements previously issued. The Company 
does not expect a material impact of the ASU on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(Topic 606)." ASU No. 2014-09 provides a single, contract-based revenue recognition model to help improve financial reporting 
by providing clearer guidance on when an entity should recognize revenue, and by reducing the number of standards to which 
entities have to refer. The amendment supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and 
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most industry-specific guidance throughout the Industry Topics of the Codification. The amendments in this accounting standard 
update are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. 
The Company is currently evaluating the impact the provisions of the ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 4—Sale of Casing Drilling

On June 4, 2012, we completed the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Casing Drilling segment  to Schlumberger Oilfield 
Holdings Ltd. and Schlumberger Technology Corporation (together, the "Schlumberger Group") for a total cash consideration of 
approximately $46.6 million, including a working capital purchase price adjustment.  During the year ended December 31, 2013, 
the Company recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $1.4 million primarily from the working capital purchase price adjustment, 
in addition to the $12.4 million pre-tax gain recognized in 2012.  At December 31, 2013, the total pre-tax gain from the sale is 
$13.8 million, net of transaction costs.  The table below sets forth the details contributing to the gain on sale (in thousands):

Total cash consideration $ 46,625
Fixed assets, net (11,999)
Inventories, net (10,839)
Accounts receivable, net (8,330)
Transaction costs (1,670)
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling $ 13,787

Note 5––Acquisitions
 
On May 7, 2014, we purchased substantially all of the operating assets of Tech Field Services, LLC ("TFS") for total consideration 
of approximately $6.4 million, including $5.0 million of cash and $1.4 million of contingent earn-out obligations. The range of 
earn-out obligations is from $0 to $2.0 million and the obligation expires in May 2016. TFS, established in 2006 in Magnolia, 
Texas, provided parts, maintenance, and repairs for multiple top drive manufacturers, including TESCO top drive units. In addition 
to its core AMSS business, TFS offered hydraulic top drive rental units to customers. The acquired assets included four top drive 
rental units, parts inventory, and various administrative assets. We allocated approximately $4.7 million of the purchase price to 
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and approximately $1.7 million to goodwill in the Top Drive reporting unit.

On November 19, 2013, we completed the transaction to acquire certain intellectual property assets of Custom Pipe Handlers 
Canada Inc. ("CPH"), a private catwalk mechanization technology company located in Canada. The purchase price was allocated 
to the intangible assets acquired based on their estimated fair values on the acquisition date.

Note 6––Details of Certain Accounts
 
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, prepaid and other current assets consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

 2014 2013
Prepaid taxes other than income $ 4,168 $ 4,560
Prepaid insurance 3,481 5,229
Other prepaid expenses 6,237 4,016
Deposits 4,293 3,849
Restricted cash 2,664 2,708
Non-trade receivables 1,503 6,866
Deferred job costs 4,528 2,291
 $ 26,874 $ 29,519

 
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
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 2014 2013
Accrued payroll and benefits $ 18,202 $ 19,471
Accrued taxes other than income taxes 4,194 7,467
Other current liabilities 4,385 9,674
 $ 26,781 $ 36,612

Note 7—Inventories

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, inventories, net of reserves for excess and obsolete inventories, by major classification were as 
follows (in thousands):

 2014 2013
Raw materials $ 76,489 $ 51,742
Work in progress 2,866 1,280
Finished goods 35,327 43,852
 $ 114,682 $ 96,874

We evaluated the carrying value of our global inventory by estimated part-by-part inventory turnover, and we projected sales 
estimates based on the current operating environment and the timing of forecasted economic recovery.  Based on our analysis, 
other than the Venezuela charges discussed in Note 16, no other charges were taken during 2014 and 2013 as the net realizable 
value of our consolidated inventory exceeded its carrying amount.

Reserves for excess and obsolete inventory included on our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were 
$2.7 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

Note 8—Property, Plant, and Equipment

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, property, plant, and equipment, by major category were as follows (in thousands):

 2014 2013
Land, buildings and leaseholds $ 27,488 $ 27,048
Drilling equipment 359,533 324,886
Manufacturing equipment 14,302 11,340
Office equipment and other 32,836 30,590
Capital work in progress 9,621 16,681
 443,780 410,545
Less: Accumulated depreciation (241,275) (206,089)
 $ 202,505 $ 204,456

The net book value of used top drive rental equipment sold included in cost of sales and services on our consolidated statements 
of income was $2.2 million, $3.1 million and $3.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We assumed capital leases with our acquisition of Premiere.  During the year ended December 31, 2013 we paid off a significant 
amount of the outstanding balances related to Premiere's capital leases.  At December 31, 2014, the outstanding balance of Premiere's 
capital leases was not materially significant.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, capital leases included in property, plant and equipment, at cost, by major category were as 
follows (in thousands):

 2014 2013
Office equipment and other 598 598
 598 598
Less: Accumulated depreciation (572) (437)
 $ 26 $ 161
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Depreciation and amortization expense is included on our consolidated statements of income as follows (in thousands):

 Year Ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Cost of sales and services $ 39,376 $ 38,522 $ 40,780
Selling, general & administrative expense 2,633 2,699 2,230
 $ 42,009 $ 41,221 $ 43,010

Note 9—Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
We classify and disclose assets and liabilities carried at fair value in one of the following three categories:

• Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;
• Level 2 — observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data
• Level 3 — significant unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to 

develop its own assumptions.

The following table summarizes the fair values and levels within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements 
fall for assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Total

Quoted Prices 
In Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
(Level 3)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,466 $ 72,466 $ — $ —
Contingent earn-out obligations $ 1,014 $ — $ — $ 1,014

Cash and cash equivalents approximated their fair value due to the short-term nature of the accounts.

The valuation of our contingent earn-out obligations (see further discussion in "Note 5") is determined using a probability weighted 
discounted cash flow method. This fair value measurement is based on significant unobservable inputs in the market and thus 
represents a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the purchase 
agreements and utilizes assumptions with regard to future cash flows, probabilities of achieving such future cash flows and a 
discount rate. The contingent earn-out obligations are measured at fair value each reporting period and changes in estimates of 
fair value are recognized in Other Income.

The discount rate used to calculate the contingent earn-out obligation is calculated by weighting Tesco’s after tax required returns 
on debt and equity by their respective percentages of total capital plus a certain premium.  The return required by each class of 
investor reflects the rate of return investors would expect to earn on other investments of equivalent risk. Tesco management 
determined it would be appropriate to use a discounted rate equal to the calculated WACC of 9.3% plus 5% a premium due to 
current market risk for a total discount rate of 14.3%.  Performing a sensitivity analysis on the discount rate for the contingent 
earn-out obligation, Tesco notes that the fair value would decrease approximately 5% to 6% for every 10% increase in the discount 
rate.

The table below presents a reconciliation of the fair value of our contingent earn-out obligations that use significant unobservable 
inputs (Level 3) (in thousands):

Balance at beginning of year $ —
     Issuances 1,382
     Settlements —
     Adjustments to fair value (368)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 1,014
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We measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These assets are recognized at fair value when they are deemed 
to be other-than-temporarily impaired. Other than the Venezuela charges discussed in Note 16, we did not recognize any 
impairments, in the current quarter, on those assets required to be measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

The fair value of our long term debt depends primarily on current market interest rates for debt issued with similar maturities by 
companies with risk profiles similar to ours. We did not have any outstanding borrowings under our credit facility at December 31, 
2014.

Note 10—Long Term Debt

Long term debt consists of the following (in thousands): 

 December 31,
 2014 2013
Capital leases $ 25 $ 215
Other notes payable — 315
Current portion of long term debt (25) (503)
Non-current portion of long term debt $ — $ 27

 
As part of our acquisition of Premiere Casing Services - Egypt S.A.E ("Premiere") in 2011, we assumed $7.4 million of outstanding 
debt on the acquisition date of October 16, 2011.  During the year ended December 31, 2012, we paid off all of the outstanding 
balances related to Premiere's notes payable and a significant amount of the outstanding balances related to Premiere's capital 
leases.  At December 31, 2014, the outstanding balance of Premiere's capital leases was not material.

We entered into a new credit agreement on April 27, 2012, to provide a revolving line of credit of $125 million, including up to 
$20 million of swing line loans (collectively, the "Revolver").  The credit facility has a term of five years and all outstanding 
borrowings on the Revolver are due and payable on April 27, 2017.  The credit facility bears interest at a margin above LIBOR, 
federal funds rate, or the prime rate for U.S. dollar loans as determined by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. in New York.  We are 
required to pay a commitment fee on available, but unused, amounts of the credit facility of 0.375-0.500 percent per annum and 
a letter of credit fee of 1.00-2.00 percent per annum on outstanding face amounts of letters of credit issued under the credit facility.  
Amounts available under the Revolver are reduced by letters of credit issued under our credit facility, not to exceed $50 million 
in the aggregate.  Amounts available under the swing line loans may also be reduced by letters of credit or by means of a credit 
to a general deposit account of the applicable borrower.  The availability of future borrowings may also be limited in order to 
maintain certain financial ratios required under the covenants.  The credit facility contains covenants that we consider usual and 
customary for an agreement of this type, including a leverage ratio, a minimum net worth, and limitations on allowable amounts 
for the disposal of obsolete assets and annual capital expenditures, and a fixed charge coverage ratio.  The credit facility prohibits 
incurring any additional indebtedness outside the existing credit facility in excess of $50 million and contains other restrictions, 
including paying cash dividends to shareholders, which are standard to the industry.  All of our direct and indirect material 
subsidiaries in the United States, Canada, Argentina, Mexico, and Indonesia as well as one of our Cyprus subsidiaries are guarantors 
of any borrowings under the credit facility.  

Under the Revolver at December 31, 2014, we had no outstanding borrowings, $3.8 million in letters of credit outstanding within 
our credit facility, and $121.2 million in available borrowing capacity.  We were in compliance with our bank covenants at 
December 31, 2014.
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Note 11—Shareholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compensation

Weighted average shares

The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average shares (in thousands):
 

 December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 39,912 39,090 38,688
Dilutive effect of stock compensation awards 605 670 414
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 40,517 39,760 39,102
Anti-dilutive options excluded from calculation due to exercise prices 355 636 1,207

Stock-based compensation
 
Our stock-based compensation plan provides for the grants of stock options, restricted stock, performance share units, and other 
stock-based awards to eligible directors, officers, employees and other persons.  The maximum number of shares that may be 
issued under our incentive plan may not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock.  As of December 31, 
2014, 3,894,861 shares of our common stock were authorized for grants of stock-based awards and 1,600,589 shares were available 
for future grants.

Stock options
 
We grant options to our employees at an exercise price that may not be less than the market price on the date of grant.  Stock 
options granted under our incentive plan have historically vested equally over a three year period and expired no later than seven 
years from the date of grant.  Our stock-based compensation plan allows for options to be denominated in Canadian dollars or 
U.S. dollars at our discretion.  Prior to our delisting from the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX") in 2008, options grants were 
generally in Canadian dollars.  In conjunction with our delisting from the TSX, subsequent option grants have been in U.S. dollars 
and we plan to denominate all future grants in U.S. dollars.  The following is a summary of our stock option transactions for the 
year ended December 31, 2014:
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 Number of
Shares

Underlying
Options

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price Per Share

Weighted-
Average

Contractual 
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

U.S. dollar denominated options   (in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,485,008 $ 13.77   

Granted 215,200 $ 13.31   
Exercised (598,495) $ 10.78   
Forfeited (77,806) $ 14.24   
Expired (27,500) $ 27.91   

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 996,407 $ 15.04 3.81 $ 899
Vested at December 31, 2014 or expected to vest
in the future 982,445 $ 15.06 3.77 $ 891

Exercisable at December 31, 2014 557,383 $ 15.79 2.55 $ 607
Canadian dollar denominated options     

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 113,434 C$ 27.77   
Granted — C$ —   
Exercised — C$ —   
Forfeited — C$ —   
Expired (97,834) C$ 28.26   

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 15,600 C$ 24.67 0.16 C$ —
Vested at December 31, 2014 or expected to vest
in the future 15,600 C$ 24.67 0.16 C$ —

Exercisable at December 31, 2014 15,600 C$ 24.67 0.16 C$ —
 

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recognized $1.7 million, $1.9 million and $1.9 million of pre-tax compensation expense for stock 
options, including forfeiture credits, and recorded $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.6 million of income tax benefits, 
respectively.  Total compensation cost related to unvested option awards not yet recognized at December 31, 2014 was 
approximately $1.4 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.  Options exercised 
during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 had a total intrinsic value of $4.8 million, $3.2 million and $0.3 million, 
respectively, generated $6.5 million, $5.3 million and $1.4 million of cash proceeds, respectively, and generated $1.7 million, $1.0 
million, and $0.1 million of associated income tax benefit in 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Assumptions.  The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model based on several assumptions.  These assumptions are based on management's best estimate at the time of grant.  For 
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the weighted average grant date fair value per share of options granted was 
$4.83, $7.93 and $6.43 per share, respectively.

Listed below is the weighted average of each assumption based on grants for years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

 2014 2013 2012
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 1.5% 1.3% 0.6%
Expected dividend yield 1.4% —% —%
Expected life (years) 4.5 4.5 4.5
Weighted average expected volatility 47% 52% 69%
Weighted average expected forfeiture rate 2% 2% 2%

 
We estimate expected volatility based on our historical stock price volatility over the expected term.  We estimate the expected 
term of our option awards based on the vesting period and average remaining contractual term, known as the "simplified method", 
as we do not have sufficient historical data for estimating our expected term due to significant changes in the make-up of our 
employees receiving stock-based compensation awards.
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Restricted Stock
 
We grant restricted stock units under our incentive plan, which generally vest equally in three annual installments from the date 
of grant and entitle the grantee to receive the value of one share of our common stock for each vested restricted stock unit.  A 
summary of our restricted stock transactions for the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented below:
 

 
Number of Restricted

Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair 
Value per Share

U.S. dollar denominated restricted stock units   
Unvested at December 31, 2013 492,717 $ 14.54

Granted 345,300 $ 12.66
Vested (201,266) $ 14.08
Forfeited (63,210) $ 14.27

Unvested at December 31, 2014 573,541 $ 13.60
 
During 2014, 2013, and 2012, we recognized $2.5 million, $3.0 million, and $2.6 million of pre-tax compensation expense including 
forfeiture credits, respectively, on restricted stock units and recorded $0.8 million, $0.9 million, and $0.8 million of income tax 
benefits, respectively.  Total compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock units not yet recognized at December 31, 2014 
was approximately $5.6 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.  The grant date 
fair value of our restricted stock granted during 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $4.4 million, $3.9 million, and $6.1 million, respectively.  

Performance Stock Units

Under the 2013 program, we granted performance stock units under our incentive plan, which vested in full after 3 years from the 
grant date and entitled the grantee to receive the value of one share of our common stock for each vested performance share unit, 
subject to adjustment based on a performance measure.  We had two types of performance stock units; the first type was based on 
the annual performance of our stock price as compared to the stock price of a group of our peers, and the second type was based 
on meeting or exceeding a pre-determined annual operating income margin as set by our board of directors.  The performance 
stock unit performance objective multiplier could range from zero (when threshold performance is not met) to a maximum of 1.5 
times the initial award.  Performance share units could be settled by delivery of our shares or the payment of cash based on the 
market value of our shares at the time of settlement, at our discretion.

In December 2014, we revisited the program and made significant changes to the grant terms. For performance stock units granted 
in December 2014, the performance period runs for 3 years beginning on the date of grant until December 31, 2017. It is then 
followed by a short, time-based vesting period to permit adequate time to calculate performance. We have two types of performance 
stock units; the first type is contingent upon the 3 year cumulative earnings per share achieved by the Company ("EPS") as measured 
against sliding targets that vary based on the revenue achieved over that same period, and the second type is based on the 3 year 
average return on capital employed ("ROCE") as measured against targets that vary based on the revenue achieved over that same 
period. The performance stock unit performance objective multiplier could range from zero to a maximum of two times the initial 
award for each type of performance stock unit.

A summary of our performance stock units for the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented below:
 

 

Number of
Performance
Stock Units

Weighted-
Average

Fair Value at 
Reported Date

Unvested at December 31, 2013 358,500 $ 14.05
Granted 239,870 $ 12.69
Vested (92,726) $ 15.51
Forfeited (77,944) $ 13.96
Expired — $ —

Unvested at December 31, 2014 427,700 $ 13.08
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During 2014, 2013, and 2012, we recognized $0.5 million, $1.0 million, and $0.5 million, respectively, of pre-tax compensation 
expense, including forfeiture credits, on performance stock units and recorded $0.4 million, $0.4 million, and $0.2 million, 
respectively, of income tax benefits.  Total compensation cost related to unvested performance stock units not yet recognized at 
December 31, 2014 was approximately $4.3 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.7 
years.  The grant date fair value of our performance stock units granted during 2014, 2013, and 2012 was $2.9 million, $1.9 million, 
and $3.8 million, respectively.

As outlined in our 8-K filed on August 21, 2014, our CEO announced his retirement and resignation from Tesco, effective January 
1, 2015. Under the terms of the related retirement agreement, upon retirement all unexercised and unexpired stock options granted 
prior to December 31, 2013 became vested 100%. Consequently, the vesting date of the unexercised options was accelerated to 
January 1, 2015, and accordingly, the remaining unamortized expense of $0.3 million was recognized over the final service period. 
In addition, all unvested RSUs and PSUs were cancelled, which resulted in reversal of previously recognized expense of $0.8 
million at December 31, 2014.  In addition, transition and retirement cash bonuses of $2.3 million were paid under this agreement.

Note 12—Income Taxes

We are an Alberta, Canada corporation.  We conduct business and are taxed on profits earned in a number of jurisdictions around 
the world. Income taxes have been provided based on the laws and rates in effect in the countries in which operations are conducted 
or in which we are considered a resident for income tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis 
of an asset or liability and its basis as reported on our consolidated financial statements.  The measurement of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities is based on enacted tax laws and rates currently in effect in the jurisdictions in which we have operations.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current according to the classification of the related asset or 
liability for financial reporting.  The components of the net deferred tax asset (liability) were as follows (in thousands):
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 December 31,
 2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:   

Current:   
Canada:   

Loss carryforwards $ — $ 1,230
Accrued liabilities and reserves 2,883 753

United States:   
Accrued liabilities and reserves 1,910 1,184

Other International:   
Accrued liabilities and reserves 4,880 3,150

Current deferred tax assets 9,673 6,317
Less: Valuation allowance (357) (181)

Total current deferred tax assets $ 9,316 $ 6,136
Non-current:   

Canada:   
Tax credit carryforwards 1,908 1,360
Property, plant and equipment 9,010 8,334

United States:   
Loss carryforwards — 1,611
Tax credit carryforwards 1,074 157
Stock compensation 2,579 3,801
Accrued interest 687 350

Other International:   
Loss carryforwards 6,837 4,536
Property, plant and equipment 3,123 2,636

Non-current deferred tax assets 25,218 22,785
Less: Valuation allowance (6,267) (4,348)

Total non-current deferred tax assets $ 18,951 $ 18,437
Deferred tax liabilities:   

Current:
Canada:

Tax credit carryforwards (452) —
Total current deferred tax liabilities $ (452) $ —
Non-current:   

United States:   
Property, plant and equipment $ (11,064) $ (9,830)
Intangibles (3,124) (2,427)

Other international:   
Property, plant and equipment (2,619) (2,606)
Intangibles (464) (894)

Total non-current deferred tax liabilities (17,271) (15,757)
Net deferred tax assets $ 10,544 $ 8,816

Deferred tax assets relating to tax benefits of employee stock-based compensation have been reduced to reflect stock options 
exercised and restricted stock and performance shares that vested during the year. Some exercises and vestings result in tax 
deductions in excess of previously recorded benefits based on the option value at the time of grant ("windfalls"). Although these 
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additional tax benefits or "windfalls" are reflected in net operating loss carryforwards pursuant to accounting for stock compensation 
under GAAP, the additional tax benefit associated with the windfall is not recognized until the deduction reduces taxes payable. 
While there were net operating losses in 2014, these losses can be immediately carried back and fully offset by prior year income. 
Accordingly, all 2014 "windfall" tax benefits of $0.8 million were recognized, as they are reducing current taxes payable by $0.3 
million.

Since we are taxable in a number of jurisdictions around the world, our effective tax rate, which is income tax expense as a 
percentage of pre-tax earnings, fluctuates from year to year based on the level of profits earned in these jurisdictions and the tax 
rates applicable to such profits.
 
The combined Canadian federal and Alberta provincial income tax rate was 25% for 2014, 2013, and 2012.

Our income before income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

 December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Canada $ 9,696 $ 2,665 $ 27,459
United States 3,504 1,422 18,197
Other international 25,244 46,199 29,706
Income before taxes $ 38,444 $ 50,286 $ 75,362

 
Our income tax provision (benefit) consisted of the following (in thousands):

 December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Current:    

Canada $ 1,153 $ (940) $ 931
United States (849) 1,161 3,174
Other international 20,183 16,515 15,790

Total current 20,487 16,736 19,895
Deferred:    

Canada (691) 15 3,456
United States 2,660 47 3,970
Other international (5,448) (1,796) (2,136)

Total deferred (3,479) (1,734) 5,290
Income tax provision $ 17,008 $ 15,002 $ 25,185

A reconciliation of the statutory rate and the effective income tax rate is as follows:

 Year Ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Statutory tax rate 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Effect of:    

Tax rates applied to earnings not attributed to Canada 13.7 5.8 4.1
U.S. state taxes 1.3 1.3 (0.1)
Non-deductible and permanent items 3.3 0.3 2.7
Foreign exchange related adjustments 0.2 2.8 (0.1)
Change in valuation allowance 2.4 0.7 1.9
Research and development tax credits (3.1) (2.1) (1.7)
Change in uncertain tax positions and tax audit assessments 1.0 (2.6) 1.4
Other 0.4 (1.4) 0.2

Effective tax rate 44.2% 29.8% 33.4%
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During 2014, we utilized $2.4 million of non-capital loss carryforwards in Canada.  At December 31, 2014, we had no Canadian 
loss carryforwards remaining.

Certain of our U.S. and foreign subsidiaries file separate tax returns and have incurred losses in those respective jurisdictions. 
During 2014, we utilized $0.7 million of net operating loss carryforwards in the U.S. and generated $10.4 million of net operating 
losses that can be immediately carried back and fully offset by prior year income. At December 31, 2014, we had no U.S. net 
operating loss carryforwards remaining. General business credits of $1.0 million that were previously used have been freed up 
and will be carried forward.

At December 31, 2014 we had a deferred tax asset related to other foreign loss carryforwards of $6.9 million. Due to insufficient 
earnings history in the jurisdictions where some losses were generated, we do not expect to fully utilize these foreign 
losses.  Therefore, a partial valuation allowance has been established against the related deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance 
at December 31, 2014 was $4.6 million.

At December 31, 2014 we had a deferred tax asset related to foreign tax credits of $2.0 million.  These foreign tax credits are fully 
offset by a valuation allowance of $2.0 million.

No provision is made for taxes that may be payable on the repatriation of accumulated earnings in foreign subsidiaries of $85.6 
million on the basis that these earnings will continue to be used to finance the activities of these subsidiaries.  It is not practicable 
to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred income taxes associated with these unremitted earnings.

At December 31, 2013, we had an accrual for uncertain tax positions of $1.9 million. During 2014, we increased our accrual by 
$0.6 million in uncertain tax positions for prior year and $0.3 million in uncertain tax positions for the current year. We reversed 
$0.2 million due to a lapse in the statute of limitations, leaving a balance of $2.6 million at December 31, 2014.  Out of the $2.6 
million, $0.6 million is included in a current liability, as we expect resolution within the next twelve months. The remaining $2.0 
million is included in long term liabilities. The total amount of the $2.6 million unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, 
would affect the effective tax rate is $1.4 million.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending accrual for uncertain tax positions is as follows (in thousands): 

 December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,904 $ 3,594 $ 2,291

Decreases in tax positions for prior years — — (568)
Increase in tax positions for prior years 556 — 1,531
Increase in tax positions for current year 299 308 455
Legal settlements — (1,998) (115)
Lapse in statute of limitations (206) — —

Balance, end of year $ 2,553 $ 1,904 $ 3,594
 
Interest related to uncertain tax positions is recognized in interest expense on our consolidated balance sheets, and penalties related 
to uncertain tax positions are recognized in other expense on our consolidated statements of income.  At December 31, 2013, we 
had accrued $0.5 million for the potential payment of interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions.  In 2014, we reversed $0.4 
million of accrued interest and penalties due to a lapse in the statute of limitations, leaving a balance of $0.1 million at December 31, 
2014 for the potential payment of interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions.

We are subject to Canadian federal and provincial income tax and have concluded substantially all Canadian federal and provincial 
tax matters for tax years through 2006.  We are also subject to U.S. federal and state income tax and have concluded substantially 
all U.S. federal income tax matters for tax years through 2010.

In addition to the material jurisdictions above, other state and foreign tax filings remain open to examination.  We believe that 
any assessment on these filings will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash 
flows.  We believe that appropriate provisions for all outstanding issues have been made for all jurisdictions and all open 
years.  However, audit outcomes and the timing of audit settlements are subject to significant uncertainty.  Therefore, additional 
provisions on tax-related matters could be recorded in the future as revised estimates are made or the underlying matters are settled 
or otherwise resolved.
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Note 13—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
 
Goodwill

A reporting unit is defined as an operating segment or one level below an operating segment (also known as a component).  As 
such, the first step to identifying reporting units is to identify the operating segments in accordance with ASC 280, Segment 
Reporting. Consistent with prior years, we have identified four operating segments. These four operating segments are defined 
by the Company as Top Drive, Tubular Services, Corporate and R&E.  The Corporate and R&E segments are allocated to the Top 
Drive and Tubular Services operating segments for purposes of goodwill impairment testing. Prior to 2014, we also had a Casing 
Drilling operating segment but it was disposed of in 2012.

We have $32.7 million and $1.7 million of goodwill assigned to our Tubular Services and Top Drive reporting units, respectively. 
 The goodwill assigned to Top Drive reporting unit is a result of our 2014 acquisition of Tech Field Services Inc.  For the years 
ending December 31, 2013 and 2012, all of our goodwill was assigned to Tubular Services reporting unit.

The goodwill impairment review is performed annually as of  December 31st. As of December 31, 2014, we utilized the (1) Income 
Approach (50% weighted) and (2) Market Approach (50% weighted), if relevant market data is available.  The 2014 impairment 
test utilized the rolling annual forecasts and our multi-year forecast for the Income Approach and certain financial information of 
publicly traded peer companies for the Market Approach.  The Income Approach estimated fair value through the present value 
of future discounted cash flows and the Market Approach estimated fair value by applying industry ratios to each reporting unit.  
Included in the Income Approach are assumptions regarding revenue growth rates, future gross margins, future selling, general 
and administrative expenses and an estimated weighted average cost of capital ("WACC").  We calculated the WACC by weighting 
the after tax required returns on debt and equity by their respective percentages of total capital plus a current market risk factor. 
For the Market Approach, we identified peer companies for each reporting unit by focusing on companies which competed in 
either the Top Drive or Tubular Services businesses. Tesco management chose three common multiples for each reporting units 
and applied them to Tesco’s historical performance metrics in order to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit using the 
Market Approach.

At December 31, 2014, the fair value of each of our reporting units exceeded the carrying value of its net assets (i.e., step one of 
the impairment test). As a result, we were not required to conduct the second step of the impairment test. However, if in future 
periods we determined that the carrying value of the net assets of one or more of its reporting units exceeds the respective fair 
value as a result of step one, the application of step two of the impairment test could result in a material non-cash impairment 
charge to the goodwill associated with the reporting unit(s).

We concluded that the discount rate for Top Drive and Tubular Services reporting units would have to exceed 27% and 21%, 
respectively (base case used 15% discount rate under the Income Approach), in order for the reporting units to fail step one of the 
impairment test.  We also concluded that if gross margins were to decrease by 10% in each of the first 5-years of the discounted 
cash flow forecast, the two reporting units would still not fail step one of the impairment test.

We had no impairment charges related to goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

In 2013 and 2012, the Income Approach was utilized in our goodwill impairment analysis.
 
The change in the carrying amount of goodwill is as follows (in thousands): 

 December 31,
 2014 2013
Gross balance, beginning of year $ 32,732 $ 32,732

Acquisitions (See Note 5) 1,669 —
Gross balance, end of year $ 34,401 $ 32,732
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Other intangible assets

The estimated useful life, carrying amount and accumulated amortization of our intangible assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 
were as follows (in thousands): 

  2014 2013

 Estimated useful life

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Amortized intangible assets      
Customer relationships 7 - 10 years $ 6,325 $ (4,067) $ 5,850 $ (3,349)
Patents 10 - 14 years 2,521 (1,730) 2,522 (1,538)
Non-compete agreements 5 years 2,010 (1,967) 2,010 (1,943)
Other  2,938 (980) 2,628 (489)

  $ 13,794 $ (8,744) $ 13,010 $ (7,319)

Amortization expense related to our intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, was $1.5 million, 
$1.2 million and $1.5 million, respectively, and is included in cost of sales and services in our consolidated statements of 
income.  Future estimated amortization expense related to our intangible assets for the next five years is expected to be as follows 
(in thousands):

Years ending December 31,
Amortization

expense
2015 $ 1,049
2016 1,030
2017 978
2018 878
2019 485

The approximate remaining weighted-average useful lives for the various asset classes are as follows: (1) Customer Relationships 
- 5.0 years, (2) Patents - 5.0 years, (3) Non-Compete agreements 2 years and (4) Other - 7 years 
 
We did not recognize any impairment losses on our intangible assets during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Note 14—Warranties

Changes in our warranty accrual for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):

 December 31,
 2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,389 $ 3,719

Provisions 3,120 2,859
Expirations (1,001) (920)
Claims (1,138) (3,269)

Balance, end of year $ 3,370 $ 2,389

During 2014, a specific warranty reserve was recorded at an estimated cost of $1.5 million to correct issues with quills installed 
on 15 specific customer owned top drive units, which were found to have the incorrect design specifications. In 2013, a provision 
of $1.1 million was reserved to correct problems identified with torque arrest systems. Our original torque arrest design for the 
ESI model top drive was replaced by a new design based on the original system not meeting minimum acceptable safety factors 
as defined by the company. The redesigned model will be installed on customer owned units during 2015.

Note 15—Commitments and Contingencies

Legal contingencies
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In the normal course of our business, we are subject to legal proceedings brought by or against us and our subsidiaries.  None of 
these proceedings involves a claim for damages exceeding ten percent of our current assets on a consolidated basis. The estimates 
below represent our best estimates based on consultation with internal and external legal counsel.  There can be no assurance as 
to the eventual outcome or the amount of loss we may suffer as a result of these proceedings.

VARCO Litigation: Varco I/P, Inc. ("Varco") filed suit against us in April 2005 in the U.S. District Court for the Western District 
of Louisiana, alleging that our CDS infringes certain of Varco’s U.S. patents.  Varco seeks monetary damages and an injunction 
against further infringement.  We filed a countersuit against Varco in June 2005 in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District 
of Texas, Houston Division seeking invalidation of the Varco patents in question.  In July 2006, the Louisiana case was transferred 
to the federal district court in Houston, and as a result, the issues raised by Varco have been consolidated into a single proceeding 
in which we are the plaintiff.  We also filed a request with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office ("USPTO") for reexamination 
of the patents on which Varco’s claim of infringement is based.  The USPTO accepted the Varco patents for reexamination, and 
the district court stayed the patent litigation pending the outcome of the USPTO reexamination.  In May 2009, the USPTO issued 
a final action rejecting all of the Varco patent claims that we had contested.  The rejections were maintained by the USPTO on 
appeal and there are no further options for appeal by Varco.  We are in the process of having the case dismissed by the U.S. District 
Court.  At this time, we expect the case to be dismissed with no liability for Tesco and consequently do not intend to report on this 
matter further. 

Weatherford Litigation: Weatherford International, Inc. and Weatherford/Lamb Inc. (together, "Weatherford") filed suit against 
us in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division in December 2007 (the "Marshall Suit"), alleging 
infringement of certain Weatherford patents.  

In August 2008, we filed a patent infringement suit against Weatherford, National Oilwell Varco, L.P., Offshore Energy Services, 
Inc., and Frank's Casing Crew & Rental Tools, Inc. in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Texas - Houston Division 
(the "Houston Suit"). The Houston Suit claimed infringement of two of our patents related to our CDS. We settled the Marshall 
Suit and Houston Case with Weatherford on January 11, 2011.

After the settlement with Weatherford, the Houston Suit continued against the other defendants. After lengthy and extensive 
proceedings in the District Court over several years, the District Court dismissed our suit with prejudice on August 25, 2014 and 
stated that it would “entertain motions for attorney’s fees based on this ruling." On October 1, 2014, we filed an appeal of the 
dismissal of the patent suit. The defendants all filed motions seeking an award of attorney’s fees against either or both of our 
former counsel and us.  Both our former counsel and the Company filed responses opposing an award. In March 2015, the Houston 
case settled with the remaining defendants. The Company, the Company's former counsel, and the defendants are negotiating the 
final settlement agreements.  No accrual has been made for the Houston Suit. 

State Law and Collective Misclassification Action: The Company is currently participating in an arbitration, based on the 
Company’s dispute resolution process, with 25 current and former employees (the "Employees") who had worked or are working 
in various states. The Employees claim that they are owed unpaid overtime wages including liquidated damages under the Federal 
Labor Standards Act and the applicable state laws of various states, including New Mexico and Colorado.  A three judge panel of 
arbitrators is deciding this case. At this point, the parties have not yet begun to do discovery on, or address, the merits. The parties 
are litigating the issue of whether or not a Rule 23 style opt-out class action is appropriate in this case. That issue is fully briefed 
but has not been decided by the arbitrators. Once that issue is resolved, the parties will begin discovery on the merits and set a 
final hearing date. At December 31, 2014, we reserved an estimate for potential exposure in this matter.

Other contingencies
 
We are contingently liable under letters of credit and similar instruments that we enter in connection with the importation of 
equipment to foreign countries and to secure our performance on certain contracts.  At December 31, 2014 and 2013, our total 
exposure under outstanding letters of credit was $8.3 million and $6.5 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, the accounts receivable balance included approximately $2.0 million of accounts receivables from a 
customer in Mexico for the period of May 2013 through July 2014 that are unbilled due to a contractual rate dispute. We are 
seeking collection of this amount through an official dispute resolution process with the customer.  These receivables have not 
been reserved at December 31, 2014 as we believe the probable outcome of the dispute resolution process will be favorable.

Commitments
 
We have operating lease commitments expiring at various dates, principally for administrative offices, operation facilities and 
equipment.  Rental expense for all operating leases was $8.3 million, $5.6 million and $5.2 million for the years ended December 31, 
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2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  Future minimum lease commitments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or 
remaining terms of one year or more as of December 31, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):
 

Years ending December 31,
Minimum lease
commitments

2015 $ 6,980
2016 5,380
2017 4,371
2018 3,142
2019 2,169

Thereafter 6,793

As of December 31, 2014, we had $23.2 million in manufacturing purchase commitments for executed purchase orders that were 
submitted to respective vendors.
 
Note 16—Segment Information

Business segments

Prior to the sale of the Casing Drilling business during the second quarter of 2012, our five business segments were: Top Drive, 
Tubular Services, Casing Drilling, Research and Engineering, and Corporate and Other.  On June 4, 2012, we completed the sale 
of substantially all of the assets of the Casing Drilling segment, which consisted of the proprietary Casing Drilling™ technology.  
Our Top Drive segment is comprised of top drive sales, top drive rentals, and after-market sales and service.  Our Tubular Services 
segment includes both our automated and conventional tubular services.  Our Research and Engineering segment is comprised of 
our internal research and development activities related to our automated tubular services and top drive model development, as 
well as the Casing Drilling technology prior to the sale. Our Corporate and Other segment consists of expense at the corporate 
level, which includes general and administrative costs and selling, marketing and other expenses that are not directly related to or 
allocated down to other segments in our internal reporting.

We measure the results of our business segments using, among other measures, each segment’s operating income, which includes 
certain corporate overhead allocations.  Overhead costs include field administration and operations support.  At a business segment 
level, we incur costs directly and indirectly associated with revenue.  Direct costs include expenditures specifically incurred for 
the generation of revenue, such as personnel costs on location or transportation, maintenance and repair, and depreciation of our 
revenue-generating equipment.

Certain sales and marketing activities, financing activities, corporate general and administrative expenses, and other (income) 
expense and income taxes are not allocated to our business segments.

Goodwill is allocated to the business segment to which it specifically relates.
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Significant financial information relating to these segments is as follows (in thousands): 

 Year Ended December 31, 2014

 Top Drive
Tubular
Services

Casing
Drilling

Research &
Engineering

Corporate
and Other Total

Revenue $ 318,786 $ 224,142 $ 63 $ — $ — $ 542,991
Depreciation and amortization 10,909 26,392 1 65 4,642 42,009
Operating income (loss) 58,628 35,514 (632) (9,574) (37,393) 46,543
Other expense      (8,099)
Income before income taxes      $ 38,444

 

 Year Ended December 31, 2013

 Top Drive
Tubular
Services

Casing
Drilling

Research &
Engineering

Corporate
and Other Total

Revenue $ 311,570 $ 212,671 $ 624 $ — $ — $ 524,865
Depreciation and amortization 11,639 24,989 2 65 4,526 41,221
Operating income (loss) 67,998 35,850 2,124 (8,578) (42,554) 54,840
Other expense      (4,554)
Income before income taxes      $ 50,286

 

 Year Ended December 31, 2012

 Top Drive
Tubular
Services

Casing
Drilling

Research &
Engineering

Corporate
and Other Total

Revenue $ 357,787 $ 182,473 $ 12,893 $ — $ — $ 553,153
Depreciation and amortization 11,290 26,059 1,479 89 4,093 43,010
Operating income (loss) 87,519 22,237 8,184 (10,457) (30,316) 77,167
Other expense      (1,805)
Income before income taxes      $ 75,362

Geographic areas
 
We attribute revenue to geographic regions based on the location of the customer.  Generally, for service activities, this will be 
the region in which the service activity occurs.  For equipment sales, this will be the region in which the sale transaction is completed 
and title transfers.  Our revenue by geographic area for the past three fiscal years was as follows (in thousands): 

 Year ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
United States $ 185,086 $ 149,428 $ 174,805
Canada 60,677 48,328 96,375
South America 89,014 77,913 65,112
Asia Pacific 55,322 55,288 54,632
Mexico 36,989 52,424 45,173
Russia 57,482 91,827 77,816
Europe, Africa and Middle East 58,421 49,657 39,240

Total $ 542,991 $ 524,865 $ 553,153
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Our physical location of our net property, plant and equipment by geographic area as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was as 
follows (in thousands):

 Top Drive
Tubular
Services

Overhead,
Corporate and

Other
December 31,

2014
United States $ 17,128 $ 35,914 $ 10,180 $ 63,222
Mexico 26,925 2,002 387 29,314
South America 10,047 9,496 740 20,283
Asia Pacific 6,773 19,000 590 26,363
Russia 16,516 454 8 16,978
Europe, Africa and Middle East 7,738 20,721 3,878 32,337
Canada 2,904 5,245 5,859 14,008
Total $ 88,031 $ 92,832 $ 21,642 $ 202,505

 Top Drive
Tubular
Services

Overhead,
Corporate and

Other
December 31,

2013
United States $ 18,103 $ 17,779 $ 14,885 $ 50,767
Mexico 33,133 2,611 189 35,933
South America 11,580 7,909 1,008 20,497
Asia Pacific 7,835 19,134 1,852 28,821
Russia 16,995 549 156 17,700
Europe, Africa and Middle East 6,284 23,549 6,684 36,517
Canada 10,015 2,305 1,901 14,221
Total $ 103,945 $ 73,836 $ 26,675 $ 204,456
  
Venezuela Charges

Since early 2014, we have been reviewing and monitoring our operations in Venezuela given the deterioration of the political, 
business environment and security over the last year have pointed towards ever increasing risk in the country. Furthermore, the 
continued devaluation of local currency coupled with delayed and/or uncollectible payments from our customers, have made our 
ability to collect receivables increasingly difficult. As business conditions in Venezuela continued to deteriorate in the fourth 
quarter of 2014, we assessed the recoverability of our long-lived assets in the country. We performed an undiscounted cash flow 
assessment and concluded the future undiscounted cash flows did not recover the net book value of the long-lived assets based 
on our current assumptions of the Venezuelan operations.  As such we estimated the fair value of the long-lived assets based on 
the estimated market value of the asset base within Venezuela using indications of what a knowledgeable, willing buyer would 
pay to a knowledgeable, willing seller in the market and recorded a charge of approximately $0.6 million as of December 31, 
2014. Given the same circumstances, we also applied the lower of cost or market principle to the value of our inventory in country 
and concluded that its was probable that we would not recover the cost basis in our inventory.  Accordingly we applied the lower 
of cost methodology to value our inventory and recorded an inventory charge of $1.0 million to properly state the inventory at net 
realizable value as of December 31, 2014. Further, we concluded based on recent billing approval and payment history that we 
had a probability of loss on the recovery of our accounts receivable with PDVSA companies and recorded an increase in the 
allowance for doubtful accounts for $1.6 million. We will continue to recognize revenue from PDVSA companies only to the 
extent we believe collectability is reasonably assured.

The total aggregate charges recorded in Venezuela are $3.2 million of which $1.6 million is recorded as cost of sales and services 
related to impairment loss on long-lived assets and write down of the inventory to net realizable value and $1.6 million as selling, 
general and administrative costs pertaining to the increase for the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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Major customers and credit risk
 
Our accounts receivable are principally with major international and national oil and natural gas service and exploration and 
production companies and are subject to normal industry credit risks.  We perform ongoing credit evaluations of customers and 
grant credit based upon past payment history, financial condition and anticipated industry conditions.  Customer payments are 
regularly monitored and a provision for doubtful accounts is established based upon specific situations and overall industry 
conditions.  Many of our customers are located in international areas that are inherently subject to risks of economic, political and 
civil instabilities, which may impact our ability to collect those accounts receivable.  The main factors in determining the allowance 
needed for accounts receivable are customer bankruptcies, delinquency, and management’s estimate of ability to collect outstanding 
receivables based on the number of days outstanding and risks of economic, political and civil instabilities.  Bad debt expense is 
included in selling, general and administrative expense in our consolidated statements of income.

In 2013, the Venezuelan government authorized certain companies that operate in designated industry sectors to exchange a 
limited volume of bolivar for dollars at a bid rate established via weekly auctions under the Complementary System of Foreign 
Currency Acquirement ("SICAD"). In February 2014, the Venezuelan government announced plans to significantly expand the 
use of the SICAD through the introduction of a second program intended to more closely resemble a market driven exchange 
rate, SICAD 2. In addition, the Venezuelan government officials indicated that the official rate of 6.3 bolivar per U.S. dollar 
available for exchange through the Commission for the Administration of Foreign Exchange ("CADIVI") will increasingly be 
reserved for the settlement of U.S. dollar denominated transactions related to purchases of essential goods and services. 

Prior to 2014, we had remeasured our bolivar denominated net monetary assets into U.S dollars for reporting purposes at the 
CADIVI rate, which was 6.3 bolivars per U.S. dollar. As of March 31, 2014, we assessed the SICAD 1 exchange as being the 
legal mechanism most readily available to us to convert our bolivar denominated net monetary assets based on the goods and 
services we provide in-country. Consequently, we remeasured our bolivar denominated net monetary assets at March 31, 2014 
into U.S. dollars at the SICAD 1 rate of 10.8 bolivars per U.S. dollar, which resulted in a $0.4 million foreign currency loss. 
During the three months ended June 30, 2104, we determined that the SICAD 2 more closely resembled the true market rate of 
exchange, and consequently, we remeasured our bolivar denominated net monetary assets into U.S. dollar at the SICAD 2 rate 
of 49.9 bolivar per U.S. dollar, which resulted in a $0.7 million foreign currency loss. For the remainder of 2014, the SICAD 2 
rate remained substantially unchanged at 50.0 bolivar per U.S. dollar, which resulted in a negligible foreign currency losses for 
the three months ended September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2014. 

On February 13, 2015, the central bank of Venezuela announced the creation of a new foreign exchange system known as 
SIMADI, allowing the bolivar to float, which is designed to better control the sale of dollars. It is believed that international 
companies such as ours will be required to exchange U.S. dollars under this system, although the aforementioned SICAD 
systems will remain in effect. At the date of its establishment, the SIMADI rate was quoted at 170.04 bolivar per dollar, which 
amounts to a further 70% devaluation of the bolivar. 

As of December 31, 2014, our total net investment in Venezuela was approximately $2.0 million, including net monetary assets 
of $(0.3) million denominated in bolivar fuerte. We continue to assess the use of the SIMADI in our business transactions and 
evaluate its impact on our financial results.

Procurement of materials and supplies

We procure materials and components from many different vendors located throughout the world.  A portion of these components 
are electrical in nature, including permanent magnet motors, induction motors and drives.  We also purchase hydraulic components, 
such as motors, from certain suppliers located in the United States.  In order to manufacture many of our proprietary parts, we 
require substantial quantities of steel.  We select our component sources from, and establish supply relationships with, vendors 
who are prepared to develop components and systems that allow us to produce high performance, reliable and compact 
machines.  For both our electric and hydraulic top drive systems we source key components, such as AC motors, power electronics, 
and hydraulic systems from vendors who have developed these components for commercial, often non-oilfield applications, and 
who have adapted them for service conditions specific to our applications.  Consequently, our ability to maintain timely deliveries 
and to provide long term support of certain models may depend on the supply of these components and systems.  We attempt to 
minimize risks associated with this dependency through the development of supply agreements to maintain acceptable levels of 
ready components.
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Note 17—Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
 
The following table presents unaudited quarterly financial data for 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for per share amounts):

 For the 2014 quarterly period ended
 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Revenue $ 121,398 $ 145,106 $ 141,946 $ 134,541
Operating income 9,105 18,815 16,978 1,645
Net income (loss) 3,300 12,729 7,486 (2,079)
Earnings (loss) per share:   

Basic $ 0.08 $ 0.32 $ 0.19 $ (0.05)
Diluted $ 0.08 $ 0.31 $ 0.18 $ (0.05)

 For the 2013 quarterly period ended
 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
Revenue $ 126,839 $ 128,968 $ 132,248 $ 136,810
Operating income 11,583 13,836 17,584 11,837
Net income 8,255 9,159 12,777 5,093
Earnings per share:     

Basic $ 0.21 $ 0.23 $ 0.33 $ 0.13
Diluted $ 0.21 $ 0.23 $ 0.32 $ 0.13

We made adjustments to correct immaterial misstatements within our quarterly financial statements. For a detailed explanation 
of these adjustments, please refer to Note 2, Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements. The effect of these errors in our 
consolidated quarterly income statements was as follows:
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended March 31, 2014
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue    
Products $ 42,829 $ — $ 42,829
Services 78,569 — 78,569

 121,398 — 121,398
Operating expenses    

Cost of sales and services    
Products 34,694 — 34,694
Services 61,199 — 61,199

 95,893 — 95,893
Selling, general and administrative 13,934 — 13,934
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling — — —
Research and engineering 2,466 — 2,466

Total operating expenses 112,293 — 112,293
Operating income 9,105 — 9,105
Other expense    

Interest expense 688 (282) 406
Interest income (61) — (61)
Foreign exchange losses 3,339 — 3,339
Other income 6 — 6

Total other expense 3,972 (282) 3,690
Income before income taxes 5,133 282 5,415
Income tax provision 2,115 — 2,115
Net income $ 3,018 $ 282 $ 3,300
Earnings per share:    

Basic $ 0.08 $ 0.01 $ 0.08
Diluted $ 0.07 $ 0.01 $ 0.08

Weighted average number of shares:   
Basic 39,749 39,749 39,749
Diluted 40,491 40,491 40,491
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended June 30, 2014 Six months ended June 30, 2014
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue       
Products $ 65,147 $ — $ 65,147 $ 107,977 $ — $ 107,977
Services 79,959 — 79,959 158,527 — 158,527

 145,106 — 145,106 266,504 — 266,504
Operating expenses       

Cost of sales and services       
Products 47,605 (8) 47,597 82,299 (8) 82,291
Services 63,123 (265) 62,858 124,322 (265) 124,057

 110,728 (273) 110,455 206,621 (273) 206,348
Selling, general and administrative 13,344 (8) 13,336 27,278 (8) 27,270
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling — — — — — —
Research and engineering 2,500 — 2,500 4,966 — 4,966

Total operating expenses 126,572 (281) 126,291 238,865 (281) 238,584
Operating income 18,534 281 18,815 27,639 281 27,920
Other expense       

Interest expense 229 — 229 918 (282) 636
Interest income (23) — (23) (84) — (84)
Foreign exchange losses (976) (154) (1,130) 2,363 (154) 2,209
Other income 1 — 1 7 — 7

Total other expense (769) (154) (923) 3,204 (436) 2,768
Income before income taxes 19,303 435 19,738 24,435 717 25,152
Income tax provision 6,563 446 7,009 8,678 446 9,124
Net income $ 12,740 $ (11) $ 12,729 $ 15,757 $ 271 $ 16,028
Earnings per share:       

Basic $ 0.32 $ — $ 0.32 $ 0.39 $ 0.01 $ 0.40
Diluted $ 0.31 $ — $ 0.31 $ 0.39 $ 0.01 $ 0.39

Weighted average number of shares:     
Basic 40,175 40,175 40,175 39,963 39,963 39,963
Diluted 40,798 40,798 40,798 40,648 40,648 40,648
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended September 30, 2014 Nine months ended September 30, 2014
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue       
Products $ 64,295 $ — $ 64,295 $ 172,272 $ — $ 172,272
Services 77,651 — 77,651 236,178 — 236,178

 141,946 — 141,946 408,450 — 408,450
Operating expenses       

Cost of sales and services       
Products 48,712 — 48,712 131,011 (8) 131,003
Services 63,735 — 63,735 188,057 (265) 187,792

 112,447 — 112,447 319,068 (273) 318,795
Selling, general and administrative 10,668 — 10,668 37,946 (8) 37,938
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling — — — — — —
Research and engineering 1,853 — 1,853 6,819 — 6,819

Total operating expenses 124,968 — 124,968 363,833 (281) 363,552
Operating income 16,978 — 16,978 44,617 281 44,898
Other expense       

Interest expense 219 — 219 1,137 (282) 855
Interest income (25) — (25) (110) — (110)
Foreign exchange losses 3,074 — 3,074 5,438 (154) 5,284
Other income 100 — 100 107 — 107

Total other expense 3,368 — 3,368 6,572 (436) 6,136
Income before income taxes 13,610 — 13,610 38,045 717 38,762
Income tax provision 6,124 — 6,124 14,802 446 15,248
Net income $ 7,486 $ — $ 7,486 $ 23,243 $ 271 $ 23,514
Earnings per share:       

Basic $ 0.19 $ — $ 0.19 $ 0.58 $ 0.01 $ 0.59
Diluted $ 0.18 $ — $ 0.18 $ 0.57 $ 0.01 $ 0.58

Weighted average number of shares:     
Basic 40,017 40,017 40,017 39,981 39,981 39,981
Diluted 40,594 40,594 40,594 40,629 40,629 40,629
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended March 31, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue    
Products $ 48,592 $ — $ 48,592
Services 78,503 (256) 78,247

 127,095 (256) 126,839
Operating expenses    

Cost of sales and services    
Products 38,188 14 38,202
Services 63,883 (121) 63,762

 102,071 (107) 101,964
Selling, general and administrative 12,747 — 12,747
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling (1,484) — (1,484)
Research and engineering 2,029 — 2,029

Total operating expenses 115,363 (107) 115,256
Operating income 11,732 (149) 11,583
Other expense    

Interest expense (470) 72 (398)
Interest income (23) (30) (53)
Foreign exchange losses 429 409 838
Other income (827) — (827)

Total other expense (891) 451 (440)
Income before income taxes 12,623 (600) 12,023
Income tax provision 3,787 (19) 3,768
Net income $ 8,836 $ (581) $ 8,255
Earnings per share:    

Basic $ 0.23 $ (0.01) $ 0.21
Diluted $ 0.22 $ (0.01) $ 0.21

Weighted average number of shares:   
Basic 38,932 38,932 38,932
Diluted 39,430 39,430 39,430
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended June 30, 2013 Six months ended June 30, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue       
Products $ 48,359 $ — $ 48,359 $ 96,952 $ — $ 96,952
Services 80,609 — 80,609 159,112 (256) 158,856

 128,968 — 128,968 256,064 (256) 255,808
Operating expenses       

Cost of sales and services       
Products 36,661 (277) 36,384 74,849 (263) 74,586
Services 62,210 272 62,482 126,093 151 126,244

 98,871 (5) 98,866 200,942 (112) 200,830
Selling, general and administrative 13,754 — 13,754 26,501 — 26,501
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling 20 — 20 (1,464) — (1,464)
Research and engineering 2,492 — 2,492 4,521 — 4,521

Total operating expenses 115,137 (5) 115,132 230,500 (112) 230,388
Operating income 13,831 5 13,836 25,564 (144) 25,420
Other expense       

Interest expense 405 72 477 (64) 144 80
Interest income (31) (30) (61) (54) (60) (114)
Foreign exchange losses 1,635 990 2,625 2,064 1,399 3,463
Other income (964) — (964) (1,791) — (1,791)

Total other expense 1,045 1,032 2,077 155 1,483 1,638
Income before income taxes 12,786 (1,027) 11,759 25,409 (1,627) 23,782
Income tax provision 2,557 43 2,600 6,344 24 6,368
Net income $ 10,229 $ (1,070) $ 9,159 $ 19,065 $ (1,651) $ 17,414
Earnings per share:       

Basic $ 0.26 $ (0.03) $ 0.23 $ 0.49 $ (0.04) $ 0.45
Diluted $ 0.26 $ (0.03) $ 0.23 $ 0.48 $ (0.04) $ 0.44

Weighted average number of shares:     
Basic 38,988 38,988 38,988 38,960 38,960 38,960
Diluted 39,520 39,520 39,520 39,472 39,472 39,472
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TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended September 30, 2013 Nine months ended September 30, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue       
Products $ 49,089 $ — $ 49,089 $ 146,042 $ — $ 146,042
Services 83,159 — 83,159 242,270 (256) 242,014

 132,248 — 132,248 388,312 (256) 388,056
Operating expenses       

Cost of sales and services       
Products 36,774 31 36,805 111,623 (232) 111,391
Services 65,787 197 65,984 191,880 348 192,228

 102,561 228 102,789 303,503 116 303,619
Selling, general and administrative 9,708 — 9,708 36,209 — 36,209
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling 31 — 31 (1,434) — (1,434)
Research and engineering 2,136 — 2,136 6,657 — 6,657

Total operating expenses 114,436 228 114,664 344,935 116 345,051
Operating income 17,812 (228) 17,584 43,377 (372) 43,005
Other expense       

Interest expense 121 73 194 57 217 274
Interest income (29) (30) (59) (83) (90) (173)
Foreign exchange losses 471 (1,344) (873) 2,535 55 2,590
Other income 71 — 71 (1,721) — (1,721)

Total other expense 634 (1,301) (667) 788 182 970
Income before income taxes 17,178 1,073 18,251 42,589 (554) 42,035
Income tax provision 5,498 (24) 5,474 11,842 — 11,842
Net income $ 11,680 $ 1,097 $ 12,777 $ 30,747 $ (554) $ 30,193
Earnings per share:       

Basic $ 0.30 $ 0.03 $ 0.33 $ 0.79 $ (0.01) $ 0.77
Diluted $ 0.29 $ 0.03 $ 0.32 $ 0.78 $ (0.01) $ 0.76

Weighted average number of shares:     
Basic 39,076 39,076 39,076 38,999 38,999 38,999
Diluted 39,841 39,841 39,841 39,574 39,574 39,574



74

TESCO CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share information)
 

 Three months ended December 31, 2013
 As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Revenue    
Products $ 56,489 $ — $ 56,489
Services 80,453 (132) 80,321

 136,942 (132) 136,810
Operating expenses    

Cost of sales and services    
Products 45,895 226 46,121
Services 63,605 44 63,649

 109,500 270 109,770
Selling, general and administrative 13,282 — 13,282
Gain on sale of Casing Drilling — — —
Research and engineering 1,921 — 1,921

Total operating expenses 124,703 270 124,973
Operating income 12,239 (402) 11,837
Other expense    

Interest expense 656 73 729
Interest income 35 (32) 3
Foreign exchange losses 2,300 378 2,678
Other income 174 — 174

Total other expense 3,165 419 3,584
Income before income taxes 9,074 (821) 8,253
Income tax provision 3,562 (402) 3,160
Net income $ 5,512 $ (419) $ 5,093
Earnings per share:    

Basic $ 0.14 $ (0.01) $ 0.13
Diluted $ 0.14 $ (0.01) $ 0.13

Weighted average number of shares:   
Basic 39,364 39,364 39,364
Diluted 40,167 40,167 40,167
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed 
in the SEC reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, 
processed, summarized, and reported within the time period specified by the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is 
accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As of December 31, 2014, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
participated with management in evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). 

Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer determined the Company’s 
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2014 due to the material weakness described below. 

Notwithstanding the existence of the material weakness described below, and based on a number of factors including an internal 
review that identified the need for a revision of our previously issued financial statements and efforts to remediate the material 
weakness in internal control over financial reporting described below, we believe that the Consolidated Financial Statements in 
this Report fairly present, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows as of the dates, and 
for the periods, presented, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”).
 
Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, a company’s Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the board of directors, 
management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. A company’s internal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (iii) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our management, 
with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has assessed the effectiveness of our internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework.  Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2014, the Company's internal control 
over financial reporting was not effective due to the following material weakness.

Material Weakness in the design of controls over foreign currency calculations impacting unrealized foreign currency exchange 
adjustments, depreciation and cost of goods sold

We have identified a material weakness in the design of our controls over the calculation of foreign currency revaluation, 
depreciation and cost of goods sold in certain of our foreign subsidiaries.  Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar for all of our 
worldwide operations. For certain foreign country ledgers, our enterprise resource planning system was implemented and 
configured for the local currency to serve as the master general ledger currency, instead of the U.S. dollar, our functional currency.  
As a result, system calculations of depreciation expense and cost of goods sold are calculated in the local currency with the system 
converting these calculations into U.S dollars for US GAAP reporting purposes.  In this process, the system as configured, was 
utilizing the incorrect exchange rate which resulted in misstatements of the amounts.  Additionally, as configured, the system is 
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unable to perform a foreign currency revaluation of monetary account denominated in local currency into U.S. dollars for these 
certain country ledgers.  Therefore, a manual calculation process has historically been utilized to compensate for this system 
limitation.  We identified errors in this manual calculation process, in certain country ledgers, whereby U.S. dollar denominated 
monetary accounts were incorrectly being revalued as if they were local currency denominated.  We have concluded that we failed 
to adequately design our internal controls over financial reporting in these processes for the affected countries to mitigate the risk 
of material error that results from the system configuration limitations.

As a result of the material weakness described above, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2014, our internal 
control over financial reporting was not effective.  The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm audited the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014.

Remediation of Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is committed to the planning and implementation of remediation efforts to address this material weakness. These 
remediation efforts, summarized below, which are either implemented or in process, are intended to both address the identified 
material weakness and to enhance our overall financial control environment. In this regard, our initiatives include:

• System reconfiguration in order to properly calculate depreciation expense and cost of goods sold in the affected 
country ledgers.

• Training of local financial accounting resources on the proper calculation of the revaluation of the local foreign 
currency into U.S. dollar functional currency.

• A standard foreign currency revaluation calculation template 

• A detail review by regional financial accounting management and general corporate review of the revaluation 
calculation template for the affected country ledgers and resulting journal entries.

When fully implemented and operational, we believe the measures described above will remediate the material weakness we have 
identified and strengthen our internal control over financial reporting. We are committed to continuing to improve our internal 
control processes and will continue to diligently and rigorously review our financial reporting controls and procedures. As we 
continue to evaluate and work to improve our internal control over financial reporting, we may decide to take additional measures 
to address control deficiencies or determine to modify, or in appropriate circumstances not to complete, certain of the remediation 
measures described above.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Other than the ongoing remediation efforts described above, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial 
reporting during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially 
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.



77

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tesco Corporation 

We have audited Tesco Corporation and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Tesco Corporation and subsidiaries’ management is responsible 
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control 
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented 
or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management’s assessment. 
Management has identified a material weakness in controls related to the company’s foreign currency exchange process. We also 
have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated 
balance sheet of Tesco Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statement of income, 
shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014. This material weakness was considered in determining 
the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2014 financial statements, and this report does not affect our 
report dated March 31, 2015, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control 
criteria, Tesco Corporation and subsidiaries has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 
31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.  

/s/Ernst and Young LLP 
Houston, Texas
March 31, 2015
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Item 9B.  Other Information.

None.
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PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item (other than the information set forth in the next paragraph in this Item 10) will be included 
under the section captioned "Election of Directors (Proposal One)" in our proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of 
shareholders, which information is incorporated into this Report on Form 10-K by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our officers, directors, and employees. The full text of 
our code of business conduct and ethics can be found on our website (www.tescocorp.com) under the "Corporate Governance" 
heading on the "Investor Relations" page and attached hereto as Exhibit 14. We may satisfy the disclosure requirements under 
Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of our code of business conduct and ethics that 
applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, or controller, or persons 
performing similar functions, by posting such information on our website where it is accessible through the same link noted above.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item will be included under the sections captioned "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" and 
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" in our proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders, which 
information is incorporated into this Report on Form 10-K by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item will be included under the section captioned "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Management" in our proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders, which information is incorporated 
into this Report on Form 10-K by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item will be included under the section captioned "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" 
in our proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders, which information is incorporated into this Report on Form 
10-K by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information required by this Item will be included under the section captioned "Appointment of the Independent Auditors (Proposal 
Two)" in our proxy statement for the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders, which information is incorporated into this Report on 
Form 10-K by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
 Page No.

 (1) Consolidated Financial Statements (Included under Item 8). The Index to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements is included on page 32 of this annual report on Form 10-K and is incorporated 
herein by reference.

 (2) Financial Statement Schedules  

  Schedule II—Valuation and qualifying accounts

 
(b) Exhibits

Exhibit No.  Description

3.1*   Restated Articles of Amalgamation of Tesco Corporation, dated May 29, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Tesco Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 1, 2007)

3.2*  Amended and Restated By-laws of Tesco Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Tesco
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 5, 2014 filed with the SEC on March 11, 2014)

4.1 Form of Common Share Certificate for Tesco Corporation

10.1*
 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated April 27, 2012 by and among Tesco Corporation,
Tesco US Holding LP, the lender parties thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, NA (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Tesco Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 1, 2012)

10.2*
First Amendment, dated May 6, 2014, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated April 27,
2012 by and among Tesco Corporation, Tesco US Holding LP, the lender parties thereto and JP Morgan Chase
Bank, NA (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tesco Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on May 12, 2014)

10.3*
 Lease between NK IV Tech, Ltd. and Tesco Corporation (US), for the lease of the corporate headquarters of
Tesco Corporation, dated July 6, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Tesco Corporation’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007)

10.4*
First Amendment to Lease between TIC Properties Management, LLC, as successor in interest to NK IV Tech
Ltd. and Tesco Corporation (US), for an extension to the lease of the corporate headquarters of Tesco
Corporation, dated and effective September 19, 2013

10.5*
Lease between TDC Clay, L.P. and Tesco Corporation for the lease of the corporate headquarters in Houston,
Texas, dated July 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tesco Corporation's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2014 filed with the SEC on August 5, 2014.

10.6*+ Form of Director Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tesco Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 6, 2009)

10.7*+  Form of Officer Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tesco Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 6, 2009)

10.8*+
Retirement Agreement dated effective December 19, 2014 by and between Tesco Corporation and Julio M.
Quintana (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tesco Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on December 19, 2014)

10.9*+
 Employment Agreement dated effective December 19, 2014 by and between Tesco Corporation and Fernando 
R. Assing (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tesco Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the SEC on December 19, 2014)

10.10*+
 Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2010, effective as of August 3, 2010 by and between Tesco 
Corporation and Dean Ferris (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tesco Corporation’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 3, 2010)

32
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Exhibit No.  Description

10.11*+
 Employment Agreement dated December 23, 2013, effective as of January 1, 2014 by and between Tesco 
Corporation and Christopher L. Boone (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tesco Corporation’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 24, 2013)

10.12*+  Amended and Restated Tesco Corporation 2005 Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to 
Tesco Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 22, 2007)

10.13*+
Form of Instrument of Grant under Amended and Restated Tesco Corporation 2005 Incentive Plan (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Tesco Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 
27, 2008)

10.14*+
 Form of Instrument of Grant under Amended and Restated Tesco Corporation 2005 Incentive Plan, revised 
November 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit to Exhibit 10.29 to Tesco Corporation's Annual Report 
on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 4, 2014)

10.15*+  Tesco Corporation Employee Stock Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tesco 
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 22, 2007)

10.16*+ Tesco Corporation Short Term Incentive Plan 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to Tesco 
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 5, 2013)

10.17*+  Tesco Corporation Short Term Incentive Plan 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tesco 
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 24, 2013)

10.18+  Tesco Corporation Short Term Incentive Plan 2015

14*  Tesco Corporation Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Tesco 
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 7, 2014 filed with the SEC on August 13, 2014)

21  Subsidiaries of Tesco Corporation

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Ernst and Young LLP

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

24  Power of Attorney (included on signature page)

31.1  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification, executed by Fernando R. Assing, President and Chief Executive Officer 
of Tesco Corporation

31.2  Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification, executed by Christopher L. Boone, Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Tesco Corporation

32  Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002, executed by Fernando R. Assing, President and Chief Executive Officer of Tesco Corporation and 
Christopher L. Boone, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Tesco Corporation

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
__________________________________

* Incorporated by reference
** As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished and not filed for purposes of Sections 11 and 

12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

TESCO CORPORATION
  
By: /S/   FERNANDO R. ASSING
 Fernando R. Assing,

President and Chief Executive Officer
 
Date: March 31, 2015

 
POWER OF ATTORNEY

 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints 

Fernando R. Assing and Dean Ferris, and each of them, acting individually, as his attorney-in-fact, each with full power of 
substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments 
to this Report on Form 10-K and other documents in connection herewith and therewith, and to file the same, with all exhibits 
thereto, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full 
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection herewith 
and therewith and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and 
confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or 
cause to be done by virtue hereof.
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

Signature Title Date

/S/    FERNANDO R. ASSING President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)
March 31, 2015Fernando R. Assing

/s/    CHRISTOPHER L. BOONE Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
March 31, 2015Christopher L. Boone

/s/    THOMAS B SLOAN, JR. Vice President and
Corporate Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)
March 31, 2015

Thomas B Sloan, Jr.

/s/    MICHAEL W. SUTHERLIN
Chairman of the Board March 31, 2015

Michael W. Sutherlin

/s/    JOHN P. DIELWART
Director March 31, 2015

John P. Dielwart

/s/   FRED J. DYMENT
Director March 31, 2015

Fred J. Dyment

/s/   GARY L. KOTT
Director March 31, 2015

Gary L. Kott

/s/    R. VANCE MILLIGAN
Director March 31, 2015

R. Vance Milligan

/s/   JULIO M. QUINTANA
Director March 31, 2015

Julio M. Quintana

/s/   ELIJIO V. SERRANO
Director March 31, 2015

Elijio V. Serrano
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Schedule II
 
 

 
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

 
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 

 

 
Balance at

beginning of
year

Charged to 
cost and 
expenses

(b)

Charged to 
other 

accounts
(a)

Deductions
(c)

Balance at
end of year

 (in thousands)
2014      

Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 3,006 $ 6,441 $ — $ (3,633) $ 5,814
Inventory reserves 2,099 564 — — 2,663
Warranty reserves 2,389 3,120 — (2,139) 3,370
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 4,534 2,190 — (100) 6,624

2013      
Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 2,878 $ 4,584 $ — $ (4,456) $ 3,006
Inventory reserves 1,284 815 — — 2,099
Warranty reserves 3,719 2,859 — (4,189) 2,389
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 4,310 603 — (379) 4,534

2012      
Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 2,491 $ 2,506 $ — $ (2,119) $ 2,878
Inventory reserves 5,925 — — (4,641) 1,284
Warranty reserves 3,103 4,121 — (3,505) 3,719
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 3,283 1,595 — (568) 4,310

(a) Represents currency translation adjustments and reclasses.
(b) Primarily represents the elimination of accounts receivable and inventory deemed uncollectible or worthless and providing 

warranty reserve estimates.
(c) Negative amounts represent net recoveries of previously written-off receivables or changes to inventory and warranty services 

to customers.
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Board of Directors

Standing Left to Right:

Elijio V. Serrano - John P. Dielwart - Gary L. Kott

Sitting Left to Right:

Fred J. Dyment - Chairman of the Board Michael W. Sutherlin 

President & Chief Executive Officer Fernando R. Assing - R. Vance Milligan

Not pictured:

Retiring May 2015 AGM Julio M. Quintana 
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Tesco Corporation is an industry leader in the development and commercialization of 

drilling technology and services. Tesco’s mission is to change the way wells are drilled.  

By reducing drilling risk and increasing operational efficiency, Tesco generates real value for its customers. 

Tesco’s powerful combination of engineering and service excellence is provided by experienced and 

dedicated field personnel. Coupled with a passion for innovation, Tesco offers a comprehensive toolbox of 

proven technologies and delivers superior solutions at the well bore. With a vision spanning the crown to 

the bit, from the desert to deepwater, around the world Tesco is THE DRILLING INNOVATION COMPANY™.

Until May 15, 2015

Corporate Headquarters

3993 W. Sam Houston Parkway N.

Suite 100

Houston, Texas 77043 U.S.A.

Tel: 713-359-7000

Fax: 713-359-7001

After May 15, 2015

Corporate Headquarters

11330 Clay Road

Suite 350

Houston, Texas 77041 U.S.A.

Tel: 713-359-7000

Fax: 713-359-7001

TESCO®, Casing Drive System™, CDS™, HCCDS™, MCLRS™, PDDP™, MLT™, Markfree™, Warthog™, TESCO 

TUBULAR SERVICES™, ULTREX™, Hydro-Form™, and TesTORK™ are trademarks of Tesco Corporation.

w w w. t e s c o c o r p . c o m

Email: globalsales@tescocorp.com

www.tescocorp.com


